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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

Vinhomes Joint Stock Company {'the Company"} is a joint siock company incorporated under the Law
on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0103022741 issued by
the Hanoi Depariment of Planning and Investment on 6 March 2008 and the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0102671977 dated 5 August 2010 on registration of a shareholding company. The
Company also subseguently received amended Enterprise Registration Certificates with the 30"
amendment dated 12 June 2020 as the latest.

The current principal activities of the Company are to develop real estate property for sale, provide
leasing of offices, render real estate management and related services, provide general contractor
services, consulting and designing construction services, supervision and construction management
Services.

The Company’s head office is located at Symphony Office Tower, Chu Huy Man Street, Vinhomes
Riverside Eco-Urban Area, Phuc Loi Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi, Vietnam,

Vingroup JSC is the Company’s parent (also referred to as “the Parent Company”). Vingroup JSC and
its subsidiaries are hereby referred as the Group

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh Chairwoman Appointed on 28 February 2019

Mr. Pham Nhat Vuong Member Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh was appointed as

the Chairperson as replacement for Mr.
£ham Nhat Vuong on 28 February 2018

Mr. Nguyen Viet Quang Member

Ms. Cao Thi Ha An Member

Mr. Varun Kapur Independent member
Mr. Mueen Uddeen Independent membher
SUPERVISORY BOARD

Members of the Supervisory Board during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Pham Khei Nguyen Head of the Supervisory Board
Ms. Doan Thi Thu Mai Member
Ms. Le Thi Duyen Member
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

MANAGEMENT

Members of the Management during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr.

Ms
Ms

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Ms

Mr.

Ms
Ms

Pham Thieu Heoa Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 18 May 2019
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Resigned on 18 May 2018
. Nguyen Dieu Linh Chief Executive Officer Resigned on 28 February 2018
. Luu Thi Anh Xuan Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 28 February 2019
Resigned on 18 May 2019
Douglas John Farrell Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Pham Van Khuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Nguyen Duc Quang Deputy Chief Exacutive Officer
Nguyen Vu Hung Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 15 April 2020
. Dac Thi Thien Huong Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 10 January 2019
Resigned on 15 July 2019
Nguyen Van Trai Deputy Chief Executive Officer Resigned on 16 April 2020
. Phi Thi Thuc Nga Deputy Chief Executive Officer Resigned on 15 April 2020
. Nguyen Ngoc Thuy Linh Deputy Chief Executive Officer  Resigned on 6 June 2020

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The tegal representatives of the Company:

B

up to 5 March 2019 are Mr. Pham Nhat Vuong, Chairman, Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh, Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Nguyen Van Trai, Deputy Chief Executive Officer,

from 6 March 2019 to 19 May 2019 are Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh, Chairwoman, Ms. Luu Thi Anh
Xuan, Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Nguyen Van Trai, Deputy Chief Executive Officer;

from 20 May 2019 to 27 June 2018 are Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh, Chairwoman, Mr. Pham Thieu
Hoa, Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Nguyen Van Trai, Deputy Chief Executive Officer;

from 28 June 2018 to 19 April 2020 are Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh, Chairwoman, Mr. Pham Thieu
Hoa, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Nguyen Van Tral, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Pham
Van Khuong, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; and

from 20 April 2020 to the date of this report are Ms. Nguyen Dieu Linh, Chairwoman, Mr. Pham
Thieu Hoa, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Nguyen Vu Hung, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Mr.
Pham Van Khuong, Deputy Chief Executive Officer.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT

Management of Vinhomes Joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is pleased to present this report
and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2018.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financiat year which give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries and of
the consclidated resuits of operations and of the consolidated cash fiows of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial statements, management is
required to:

B+ select suitable accounting poiicies and then apply them consistently,
¥ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

i state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consclidated financial statements; and

w  prepare the consclidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Company and its subsidiaries will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries and to ensure that the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It
is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and hence for
taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying consolidated financial statements,

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and of the consolidated resuits of ifs operations and its
consolidated cash fiows for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards. '

-

i

If of management: 2 -
>

Hanoi, Vietham

30 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The Sharehclders of Vinhomes Joint Stock Company
Opinion

We have gudited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vinhomes Joint Stock
Company ("the Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company and its
subsidiaries™, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated staternent of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies.

In cur opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019 and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements secticn of our report. We are independent of the Company and
its subsidiaries in accordance with the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Vietnam, and we have fulfilled our other
athical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, aur
description of how cur audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfitied the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, inciuding in refation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respend to our assessment
of the risks of matsrial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion en the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Aomemler lrm ot Bingl § Yoang Gisbal Lanbed
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As of 31 PBecember 2018, the financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss relating to
Business and investment co-operation contracts ("BCCs™), as disclosed in Note 32, represents a
significant portion of the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated total assets. We considerad the
measurement of fair value of those financial assets to be a key audit matter because the valuation
process of these financial assets requires significant judgment in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology. Besides, calculations are compiex and involve certain range of estimates, assumptions
based on external and internal factors as assessed by management and the externatl appraisers of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Our audit procedures fo address this matter, amongst others, included the involvement of our specialist
in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions used by the management and the Company and
its subsidiaries’ appraisers; the review of the relevant inputs, assumptions and estimates used in the
valuation, assessment of the professional qualification, independence and objectivity of the Company
and its subsidiaries’ appraisers engaged in valuation process of fair value of these financial instruments;
the review of the accounting treatments of gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values appilied
by management and the adeguacy of reievant disclosures with respect to those financial insiruments.
The accounting policy and a discussion of significant iudgment and estimates are presented in Notes 2
and 3, and detailed disclosure about the Company and is subsidiaries’ financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in Note 32 and Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Application of IFRS 9

Given the complexity in requirements of IFRS 8, there is a significant risk pertaining to the application of
IFRS © due to its higher inherent risk in terms of (a) classification and measurement of financial
instruments; {b} valuation madel for expected credit loss ("ECL"} that involves a high level of estimation
and compiexity of inputs used in that model; and {c) specialised skills and knowledge in valuaticn are
needed to evaluate the assumptions and the caloulation.

As a resuit, our audit procedures, among others, included the review of the Company and its
subsidiaries’ process of classification and measurement of financial instruments in accordance with IFRS
8, the Company and its subsidiaries’ identification of financial instrument contracts; testing the
completeness of the contract population and testing the accuracy of samples selected; review of the
Contractual cash-flow test and Business Model assessment performed by the Company and its
subsidiaries; evaluation of the methodologies and the assumptions used by management in calculating
the impact of ECL. The Company and its subsidiaries disclosed the relevant accounting policy and a
discussion of significant judgment and estimates in Notes 2 and 3, and the detailed disclosure about the
Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments and its financia! risk management objectives and
policies in Notes 33 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Consolidation process

The Company is the holding company of a significant number of legal entities with diversified business
portfolio. Accordingly, we considered the consolidation process as a key audit matter because of the
inherent complexity involved due to wide range of merger transactions, fair value adjustments arising
from business combinations, adjustments to non-controlling interests and other equity accounts, and
voluminous intercompany fransactions that require elimination in consolidating the financial information
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

As part of our audit, among other audit procedures, we have obtained an understanding of the Company
and its subsidiaries' consclidation process and controls in place for the preparation of the consolidated
financial staterments; we tested significant consclidation adjustments; and we obtained an understanding
of the Company and its subsidiaries’ process for identifying related parties and the reconciiiation and
elimination of intercompany balances and transactions. The Company presented the relevant
disclosures on the Company’s investees in Note 1, Note 5 and Note 6.
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Adoption of IFRS 15

[FRS 16 Lease becomes effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
For this first year of IFRS 16's effectiveness, the Company and its subsidiaries selected to adopt IFRS
16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the cumulative effect of initiaily applying the
Standard recognised at the date of initial application. Given the complexity in requirements of IFRS 186,
there is a significant risk pertaining to the adoption of IFRS 1€ due to its higher inherent risk in terms of
(1) Determination of whether a contract is a lease or contain lease component at inception; {2)
Measurement of right-of-use (“RCU") assets and lease liability; (3) Accounting for sale and lease back
transactions; and {4) Assessment of whether the lease transactions are fairly presented and disclosed in
the consolidated financiat statements.

Our audit procedures to address this matter, amongst others, included the understanding the Company
and its subsidiaries’ process for implementing IFRS 18; reviewing the Company and its subsidiaries’
identification of lease contracts; testing the completeness of the contracts population and testing the
accuracy of samples selected; reviawing the calculation of right-of-use and lease lizhilities performed by
the Company and its subsidiaries; reviewing the relevant disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements; and the involvement of our specialist in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions
used by management. The relevant accounting policy and a discussion of significant judgment and
estimates are presented in Notes 2 and 3, and detailed disclosure about the Company and its
subsidiaries’ ROU assets and Lease liabilities are presented in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, wheather due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either
intends to liguidate the Company and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respensibie for overseeing the Company and is subsidiaries’ financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

& member frrn o Ernsl & Young Gleca; Lanifes
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements {continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated financial statements,

whether due fo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and o
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not SE
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as GOR
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of \g 2
internal control. v\s- &1
= QObtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures i K

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries’ internat control,

¥+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabileness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and its subsidiaries' ability to continue as a
geing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conciusions are based on the audit evidence
chtained up fc the date of our auditer’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation,

+  QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitles or
business activities within the Company and its subsidiaries to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain soiely responsible for our audit opinion.

We comrunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control
that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appiicable, related
safeguards.

A mernber ismof Ernst & Young Globst Limiled
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report untess faw or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be commuinicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Le Vu Troong

Deputy General Director

Audit Practising Registration
Certificate No. 1588-2018-004-1
Hanoi, Vietnam

30 June 2020
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes

Revenue from contract with customers 7.1
Sale of inventary property

Rendering general contractor, construction
consuttancy and supervision services
Rendering real estate management and
related services

Retail outlets

Other revenue

Rental income

L.easing of investment property and rendering
of reiated services

Revenue
Cost of sales and services 7.2

Gross profit

Other operating income 7.3
Selling and distribution expenses 7.4
Administrative expenses 7.5
Other operating expenses 78
Operating profit

Finance incomsa 7.7
Finance costs 7.8
Share in profit of associates

Profit before tax
income {ax expenses 8.1

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Nen-controliing interests

Earnings per share (EPS): g1
» Basic, profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the parent
» Difuted, profil for the year atiributable to

ordinary equity holders of the parent

2019 2018
VND million VND million
48,865,131 37,085,327

2,657,041 3,889,230
1,483,024 960,729
- 8,155

160,216 123,951
1,113,647 816,437
54,279,059 42,883,829

(26,702,020) (32,785,171)

27,577,039 10,098,658

6,636,113 12,838,100
(2,064,107) (1,361,189)
(1,902,511) (1,291,402)
(155,506) (146,589)
30,091,028 20,137,578
2,531,950 1,712,463
(2,900,068) (2,470,037)
. 191
29,722,910 19,380,195
(4,992,506) (4,833,734)
24,730,404 14,546,461
22,167,023 14,054,595
2,563,381 491,866
VND VND

6,627 4,431
6,627 4,431




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Cther comprehensive income not fo be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods (net of fax):

Revatuation of financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income (net of tax)

Net other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

QOther comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income, net of tax

Altributable to:
Equity helders of the parent
Non-controlling inferests

Noles

10

22

2018 2018

VND miliion VND milfion
24,730,404 14,546,461
- 75,306

- 75,306

- 75,306
24,730,404 14,621,767
22,167,023 14,129,901
2,563,381 491 866
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangibie assets

Right-of-use assets

Completed investment property
Investment property under construction
Construction in progress

Long-term deposits and receivables from
related parties

Other non-current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
foss

Deferred tax assets

Long-term prepayments
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventeries

Trade receivables

Short-term advances to suppliers

Amounts due from related parties

Short-term prepayments and other receivables
Short-term investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes

11

10
1
24
12
13
i4

34
18

32
8.2

16
17
18
34
19
20

32
21

2018 2018

VND miffion VND million
624,738 100,435
765207 1,092,602
1,593 824 -
6,722,048 5,762,345
28,808,443 18,119,889
20217 206,258
16,302,031 621,114
1,365,228 1,258,736
180,000 -
544,256 424 603
59,821 143,333
56,986,711 27,729,415
61,683,792 34,956 245
6,783,242 4,414,815
8,770,271 2,493,816
13,673,471 7,837 424
16,270,330 18,569,269
18,138,347 5,388,173
9,921,710 16,404,901
13,328,227 3,613,880
446,480,390 93,568,493
203,467,101 124,297,908




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

as at 31 December 2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Issued capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Under common control reserve
Other reserve

Retained earnings

Equity attributabie to equity hoiders of the
parent
Non-controling interests

Total equity

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

L.ong-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Long-term customer's deposit

Long-term deferred revenues

Deferred tax fiabilities

Long-term accruais

Warranty provisions

Long-term deferred revenue and payables to
related parties

Long-term lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term interest-bearing foans and borrowings
Short-term lease liabilities

Trade payables

Deposits and down payment from customers
Shortterm deferred revenues

Short-term borrowings, deposits from and
payables to related parties

Short-term accruals

Corporate incorne tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total lizbilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

23

26

28

8.2
28.2
28.3

34
24

25
24

27
34

281

30

12

2019 2018

VND mitlion YND miffion
33,495,138 33,495,139
285,000 295,000
(5,549,929) -
1,270,988 1,270,988
3,014,147 3,114,833
26,024,880 7,202,726
58,550,325 45,378,788
8,580,806 4 908 853
67,131,131 50,287,439
7,385,732 18,933,847
72,383 96,038
1,286,692 1,460,877
650,503 1,342,150
370,071 102,089
141,892 189,387
966,469 7.029.618
746,848 -
11,620,690 29,153,716
18,162,354 §.020,307
308,805 -
5,530,008 2.1473,771
75,505,897 16,652,255
468,214 475,450
1,652,069 3,184,885
12,658,386 5,919,431
1,026,857 2.121,043
8,603,000 3,306,611
124,715,280 41,856,753
136,335,970 71,010,469
203,467,101 121,297,908
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax
to net cash flows:
Degpreciation, amortisation and
impairment
Net foreign exchange differences
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment, and investment property
Reversal of provision
Net gain from disposal of investments
Interest income
Interest expense
Changes in amortised cost of loans,
receivables and payables other than
nominal interest
Net gain on financial asset at fair value
through profit or {oss
Share in profit of associate
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables
{Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease} in trade and other
pavables
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments
interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows fromi(used in) operating

activities

Nofes

7.3

73,76
7.7
7.8

7.3

15

2018 2018

VND miflion VND milfion
29,722 910 19,380,185
466,766 259,593
{889} (1,414}
(96,641) (164)
{19,267} (6,094)
(1,492,8086) (3,524,838)
(2,376,941) (1,541,300)
2,377,688 2,382,622
197,131 (87,181)
(4,914,251) (9,180,193}
. (191)
(5,856,683) 5,542,502
(4,872,101) 12,608,088
81,875 747 (21,701,183)
(2,903,223) 203,901
(3,501,300} (2,579,817}
(6,102,455) (3.407,626)
52,503,705 {1,463,200)




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2019

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment,
investment property, investment property
under construction and construction in
progress

Deposits and capital contribution for
investment in potential real estate projects
Return of deposits paid for investment in
potential real estate projects

Disbursements of loans

Collections of loans

Short-term/iong-term deposit for interest gain
Redemption of short-term deposit for interest
gain

Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries and
equity interest in other entities

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, equity
investments in other entities

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets,
investment properties and other long-term
assets

Deposits for purchasing shares in other
entities

Callection of deposits for purchasing shares in
cther entities

Proceeds from fransfer rights and obligations
related to deposit of share transfer agreement
Return of deposits received for investment in
potential real estate projects

Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares

Capital contribution from minority interest
Dividend paid to equity holders of the parent
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
Purchase of treasury shares

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment for acquisition of additional interest
in existing subsidiaries

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flows (used in)from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation

Impact of provigion for expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

20718 2018

Notes VND miltion VYND miltion
(3,846,972) (750,559)
{25,606,208) {29,506,467)
10,201,688 -
(11,715,930} {13,352,851)
27,822,262 19,449,508
(2,361,080) (586,751)
2,938,757 545 891
{19,559,996) {21,340,358)
2,647,328 17,126,015
205,848 1618,545
(9,123,420) -
6,719,985 5,110,000

- 4,180,000

{6,875,000) -
500 -
1,231,561 1,113,713
(27,319,777} (16,393,260)
- 12,000,000

- 240,879

(3,349,514) {2800,000)
{337,038) (45,277)
(5,549,926) -
{5675,296) -

- {1,430,458)

6,847,057 100,191,076
{12,402 281) (90,227,832)
{15,367,001} 19,828,490
8,816,927 1,972,030
3,513,850 1,543,343
{2,550) {1,523)

21 13,328,227 3,513,850
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 Becember 2019 and for the year then ended

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vinhomes Joint Stock Company {"the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated under
the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate No.
0103022741 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and investment on 6 March 2008
and the Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0102671877 dated 5 August 2010 on
registration of a shareholding company. The Company also subsequently received amended
Enterprise Registration Certificates with the 30™ amendment dated 12 June 2020 as the
{atest.

The current principal activities of the Company are to develop real estate property for sale,
provide leasing of offices, render real estate management and related services, provide
general contractor services, consulting and designing construction services, supervision and
construction management services.

The Company's head office is located at Symphony Office Tower, Chu Huy Man Street,
Vinhomes Riverside Eco-Urban Area, Phuc Loi Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

Vingroup JSC is the Company's parent. Vingroup JSC and its subsidiaries are hereby referred
as the Group.

The Company's normal course of business cycle of real estate development activity begins
when the Company receives investment certificate, carries out land clearance and
construction works until the project is completed. Accordingly, the normal course of business
cycle of real estate development activity ranges from 12 months to 36 months.

The Company's normal course of business cycle of other activities is normally within 12
months.

The number of the Company's employees as at 31 Decemnber 2019: 7,116 {31 December
2018: 6,258).

The accompanying conselidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Company on 30 June 2020.

Corporate struciure
As at 31 December 2019, the Company has 18 subsidiaties (as at 31 December 2018: 18

subsidiaries). The information on these subsidiaries, along with the Company’s direct and
indirect voting rights and direct and indirect equity interest in each subsidiary is as follows:

17
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION {continued)
Corporate structure (continued)

() On1July 2019, the Company and its subsidiary completed the acguisition of 80% shares
of Green City JSC from counterparties with total consideration of VND15,474 billion.
Thereby, Green City JSC became a subsidiary of the Company.

On 1 October 2018, the Company disposed all of its equity interest in Thai Scn JSC to
Green City JSC. At the date of this transaction, Thai Son owned equity interests in Berjaya
VFC LLC, Berjaya VIUT LLC, Can Gio JSC and Can Gio JSC owned equity interests in
GS Cu Chi JSC. Accordingly, the equity interests in these subsidiaries were reduced but
the Company and its subsidiaries did not lose the control in these subsidiaries.

(i} On 11 December 2019, the Company completed the capital contribution amounting to
VND17 billion, equivalent to 85% of total capital contribution in An Thinh JSC.

(i) On 8 July 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the acquisition of 100%
shares of Delta JSC from counterparties with total consideration of YND4,920 billion.
Thereby, Delta JSC became a subsidiary of the Company.

(iv) The Company and its subsidiaries are in the process of completing capital contribution
procedures for establishment of this company pursuant to Capital Contribution Agresment
No 2512/2019/HDGV.

{v) On 28 March 2019, the Company and a subsidiary have disposed all shares in Prime
Lanad JSC for total consideration of VND2,413 billion to counterparties. Accordingly, Prime
Land JSC is no longer a subsidiary of the Company.

{(vi) On 28 May 2019, Dat Rong Vang LLC and West Hanoi LLC were merged to Thai Son
JSC. As a result, Dat Rong Vang LLC and West Hanoi LLC were dissolved, while Thai
Son JSC is the surviving entity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basls of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and s subsidiaries have been
prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for financial instruments measured at fair value and certain recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. For the purpose of preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, all amounts are rounded fo the
nearest million and presented in Vietnam dong millien (“VND million™).

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the
previous years. ’
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended. Control is achieved
when the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed, or have rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and have the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Company and its subsidiaries control an investee if, and
only if, it has:

» Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee),

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invoivement with the investee; and
= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support
this presumption and when the Company and its subsidiaries have less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Company and its subsidiaries consider ali relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether they have power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investes;
b Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
» The Company and its subsidiaries’ voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Company and its subsidiaries re-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company and its subsidiaries obtain control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company and its subsidiaries lose controf of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Company and its subsidiaries gain control until the date the Company and its subsidiaries
cease to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed fo the
equity holders of the parent of the Company and its subsidiaries and to the non-controliing
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Company and its subsidiaries’ accounting palicies. All intra-
group assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Company and its subsidiaries are efiminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

If the Company and its subsidiaries lose control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controliing interast and other components of equity,
while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in the consclidated statement of prefit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair vaiue. Any difference resulting from the
remeasurement of the investment retained is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. ' ' '
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

2,
2.3

a)

b}

c)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies
Operating segments

A segment is a component determined separately by the Company and its subsidiaries which:
b Engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses;

¥ Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance; and

# For which discrete financial information is available,

The Company and its subsidiaries' revenues are derived mainly from real estate business,
which comprises the sale of inventory properties and rendering real estate management
service, while other revenues form a small proportion of the Company’s total revenues. Other
than real estate business, there is no other segment whose reported revenue, reported profit
or loss or assets are 10% or more of the combined revenue, profit or loss or assets,
respectively, of all operating segments. As a result, the Company’s management is of the
view that there is only one segment for business and therefore presentation of segmental
information is not required. In addition, management defines the Company and its
subsidiaries’ geographical segments to be based on the location of the assets which is in
Vietnam.

Property acquisitions and business combinations

Where property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers
the substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the
acquisition represents the acquisition of a business. The basis of the judgement is set aut in
Note 3.

Where such acquisitions are not judged to be an acguisition of a business, they are not treated
as business combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated
between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based on their refative fair values at
the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill is recognised. Otherwise, the acquisitions are
accounied for as business combinations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations, other than business combination under common control, are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controliing interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Company and its subsidlaries elect to measure the non-controfing interests in the acquiree
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at acquisition date.
Acquisition-reiated costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Company and its subsidiaries acquire a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any result in gain or loss is recognised in the
consoclidated statements of profit or i0ss. it is then considered in the determination of goodwill.
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2
2.3

c)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (cantinued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair vaiue recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured and subsequent settfement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the
net assels acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company and
its subsidiaries re-assess whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and ali
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each CGU that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been aliocated to a CGU and part of the cperation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operations
and the portion of the CGLU retained.

Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business comnbinations involving entities under common control are accounted for as follows:

» The assets and liabilities of the combined entities are reflected at the amounts reflected
in the Parent Company's consolidated financial statements at the date of business
combination;

»= The consolidated statements of profit or loss reflect the results of the entities from the
date of the business combination; and

» No geodwill is recognised from the business combination. Any difference between the
consideration paid and the net assets of the acquiree is recorded as part of the "Under
common control reserve” account in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.
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2.3
d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment in associate

An associate is an entity over which the Company and its subsidiaries have significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary
to determine control cver subsidiaries.

‘The Company and its subsidiaries’ investment in its associates is accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company and ifs
subsidiaries’ share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating
to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised
nor separately tested for impairment.

The consclidated statements of profit or loss reflect the Company and its subsidiaries’ share
of the results of operations of the associate. Any changes in OCl of the associate are
presented as part of the Company and its subsidiaries’ OCI. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Company and its subsidiaries
recognhise its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries and the associate are eliminated {o the extent of the interest in
the associate.

The aggregate of the Company and its subsidiaries' share of profit or loss of the associate is
shown on the face of the consolidated statements of profit or loss outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the
associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company and its subsidiaries. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Company and its subsidiaries.

After application of the equity method, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether
it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its asscciates. At each
reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. if there is such evidence, the
Company and its subsidiaries calculate the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverabie amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss
as 'Share in profit/{loss) of associate' in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company and its subsidiaries
measure and recognise any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of tha
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss.
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2,
2.3
e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Current versus non-current classification

The Company and its subsidiaries present assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements

of financial position based on current/non-current classification. An assetis currentwhen it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

» Expected o be realised within tweive months after the reporting period; or

# Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

& Jtis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle;

» 1tis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

» ltis due to be seftled within twelve months after the reperting period, or
&

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries classify all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
Fair value measurement

The Company and its subsidiaries measure certain financial instruments at fair value at each
financial reporting date.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transter a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vaiue
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liabifity {akes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
w In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liabikity.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The fair vaiue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company and its subsidiaries use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the

circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximisitig
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.3

g9)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
Fair value measurement {continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair values are measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Revenue recognition
{a} Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue when it transfers control over a product
or service to a customer. The Company and its subsidiaries assess its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company
and its subsidiaries have concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements,
except for revenue from arrangements in which the Company and its subsidiaries are not the
primary obligor, have no pricing latitude, and are not exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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g)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting poficies {continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers {(continued)

The specific recognition criteria below must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sale of compieted property

The Company and its subsidiaries develop and sell real estate properties. The Company and
its subsidiaries recognise revenue when the Company and its subsidiaries satisfy an identified
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer, A good or
service is considered to be transferred when the customer cbtains control. The Company and
its subsidiaries determine, at contract inception, whether the Company and its subsidiaries
will transfer control of a2 promised good or service over time. If the Company and its
subsidiaries do not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time.

(i) Variable consideration

Contracts for the sale of completed property provide customers with an early payment
discount and penalty payments.

Where consideration in respect of a contract is variable, revenue can only be recognised to
the extent that it is highly probable that the cumulative amount of revenue recognised in
respect of a contract will not be subject to a significant reversal when the uncertainty
associated with the variable considerations is subseguently resolved {this is referred {o as the
“constraint” requirements). As a result, the Company and its subsidiaries have applied the
new constraint requirements in estimating the amount of variable consideration included in
the transaction price compared to the variable consideration previously included.

1. Early payment discount

At contract inception, customers were given an option to choose whether they will pay in
lump sum or instalment using their own cash funds, When a customer chooses to pay in
iump sum, a discount is given to them at contract inception. The Company and its
subsidiaries recognised the early payment as a reduction in revenue when the revenue
is recognised.

2. Penalty payment

In the event that a customer viclates any of his payment obligations according to the
contract the Company and its subsidiaries, at its own discretion, has the right to demand
from the customer a penalty equivalent to 10% {ten percent) of the total residence seliing
price. The Company and its subsidiaries recognised the penalty payment as part of other
income.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2,

g)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Summary of significant accounting poficies (continued)
Revenue recognition {continued)

{a) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i)} Consideration payable to customers

Consideration payable to customers includes cash amounts that the Company and its
subsidiaries pay or expect to pay to the customer and also includes credit or other items that
can be applied against amounts owed to the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company
and its subsidiaries account for the consideration payable as a reduction to the transaction
price, and therefore to revenue, unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a
distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Company and its subsidiaries recognise the reduction to revenue at the later of either of the
following events, (i) when the Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue for the transfer
of the related goods or services and {ii) when the Company and its subsidiaries pay or promise
to pay the consideration payable to customers. The consideration payable to customers
includes the interest support program.

Interest support program

The Company and its subsidiaries have an interest support program for its customers who
pay upfront for the property using bank loans. The interest payable on the loans are paid for
by the Company and its subsidiaries directly to the bank for a period of 12-36 months. The
interest payments that will be made by the Company and its subsidiaries are recognised as
reduction to transaction price.

(i) Significant financing component

The Company and its subsidiaries offer pre-completed properties to its customers and receive
advance payments from customers prior to the transfer of control over properties. The
transaction price for such contracts is adjusted for the effects of time value of money since
the timing of payments provides the Company and its subsidiaries with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of the property to the customer.

Rendering of services

Revenue from real estate management and related services, general contractor, construction
consultancy and supervigion services is recognised over time as the customer simultaneaously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs, o
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g

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting poficfes {continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

{a} Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract balances

Contract assels

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from sale of inventory properties
because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful transfer of land use rights
certification to customers. Upon transfer of land use rights certification and acceptance by the
customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on
impairment of financial assets in section j) Financial instruments - initial recognition and
subseguent measurement.

Trade receivabiss

A receivable represents the Company and its subsidiaries’ right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting pelicies of financial assets in section J) Financiat
instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company and its subsidiaries have received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. !f a customer pays consideration before the Company and its
subsidiaries transfer goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company and its subsidiaries perform under the contract.

Cost to obfain a contract
The Company and its subsidiaries pay sales commission to agents related to its sale of
inventory properties. The Company and its subsidiaries capitalise these incremental costs to

abtain a contract and then amortise on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
of the inventory properties to the customer. '
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decemnber 2019 and for the year then ended

2,
2.3

g)

h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(b} Other revenue out of scope of IFRS 15

Revenue from leasing activities

Rental income from operating leases except for contingent rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as the lease income.

Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements are spread evenly over the lease term,
even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellabie
period of the lease together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to
continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the directors are reasonably certain
that the tenant will exercise that option. Amounts received from tenants 1o terminate leases
or to compensate for dilapidations are recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss when the right to receive them arises.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arising from service charges and expenses charged to tenants are recognised in the
period in which those charges are earned.

Taxes
Current incorme tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date in the country where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and
not in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.3
h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for.

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initiat recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

e In respect of taxabie temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controfled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or fiability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxabte profit or loss; and

» Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probabile that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recegnised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The Company and its subsidiaries offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and
only if it has a legaily enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes fevied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settie current tax Habilities and assets on a net basls, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future peried in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2
2.3

h)

i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxes {continued)

Deferred tax {continued)

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about
facts and circumstances change. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction in
goodwill if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

Value added (ax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except:

» When the vaiue added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the value added tax is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in VND. For each entity, the Company
and its subsidiaries determine the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functionat currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company and its subsidiaries
at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recagnition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settienent or transtation of monetary items are recognised in the consofidated statements of
profit or loss.

Non-raonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
transiated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair vaiue of the item.
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2.3
I/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
i} Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise financial instruments when, and onty when, the
Company and its subsidiaries become a party to the contractual terms of the instrument,
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company and its subsidiaries commit to
purchase or selt the asset.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair vaiue plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atfributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation fechnique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company and its subsidiaries recognise the difference between the
transaction price and fair value in profit or loss. In these cases where fair value is based on
modeis for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when
the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company and its subsidiaries classify all of
its financial assets, at initial recognition, into four categories:

» Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments},

# Financial assets at fair value through OC1 with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
{debt instruments};

¢ Financial assets designated at fair value through OC! with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments), and

# Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {"FVPL").
The Company and its subsidiaries classify and measure its derivative and trading pertfolic at

FVPL. The Company and its subsidiaries may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.
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2.

2.3

y)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets {continued)

Subsequent measurement (confinued)

Business model assessment

The Company and its subsidiaries determine its business model at the level that best reflects
how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company
and its subsidiaries’ business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

= How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model} and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collected); and

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company and its subsidiaries’ assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking
‘worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initiat recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Company and its subsidiaries’ original expectations,
the Company and its subsidiaries do not change the classification of the remaining financial
assets held in that business model, but incorporate such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Contractual Cash Flows Assessment

For each financial asset, the Company and its subsidiaries assess the contractual terms to
identify whether the instrument is consistent with the concept of solely payment of principal
and interest ("SPPI™).

‘Principal’ for the purpase of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for exampie, if there are
repayments of principat or amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a iending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and cradit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the
Company and its subsidiaries apply judgement and consider relevant factors such as the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate
is set,

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do
not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business maode!
datermines whether cash flows will result from coflecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

35

N

/RS



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company
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8
2.3
B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets {continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Company and its subsidiaries measure its financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met

# The contractuat terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPP1; and

# The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to coliect contractual cash flows,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (‘EIR") method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the consolidated
statements of profit or foss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
consclidated statements of profit or loss in administralive expenses.

This category generally applies to Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investments, Trade
Receivables excluding contract assets, Amounts due from related parties and Other financial
assets,

Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Company and its subsidiaries measure its financial assets at FVOC!I when both of the
following conditions are met:

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPPI; and

» The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both
colfecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains and losses recognised in OCL. Impairment losses on such financial assets
are accounted for as an adjustment fo the unrealised gains and losses in OCI with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for debt instruments at amortised cost.

Where the Company and its subsidiaries hold more than one investment in the same security,
they are deemed to be disposed on a first—in first-out basis. On derecognition, unrealised
gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss under
operating income.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries have no debt instruments at
FvOCL
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2,
2.3

)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i} Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement {confinued)

Equity securities at FYOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Company and its subsidiaries may irrevocably elect to classify
and measure some of its equity securities (except for investment in Phat Loc LLC) as at
FVOCI, which are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration in a business
combination. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

After initial measurement, such equity securities are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains and losses recognised in OC! with credit to other reserve. Gains and losses
on these equity securities are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in
profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the Company and its subsidiaries benefit from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such dividends are recorded in OCI. Equity
securities at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries measure equity instruments at
FVOCI (except for investment in Phat Loc LLC, SV Real Estate JSC and SV West Hanoi JSC)
{Note 15).

Financial assets at FVPL

This category represents the ‘residual’ category if the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOC! are not met. Financial assets at FVPL will include those that are
held for trading (both debt and equity instrument), or for which the entity's business model is
to manage the financial asset on a fair value basis, i.e., to realise the asset through sales as
opposed to holding the asset to collect contractual cash flows, or the contractual cash flows
arising from the instrument is not SPPI. Financial assets at FVPL are subsequently measured
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss as other operating
incoma.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries classify investments in several

real estate projects, Phat Loc LLC, SV Real Estate JSC and SV West Hanoi JSC as financial
assets at FVPL (Note 32). ' :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.
2.3

y)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i) Financial assets {continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Company and its subsidiaries record the allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for
all lcans and other debt financial assets not measured at FVPL, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts (all referred to as “financial instruments’ in
this section). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS €.

ECLs are measured in a way that reflects the following:

» @&n unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

+ the time value of money,; and

» reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
{Lifetime ECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination,
in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (12-month ECL},

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Both 12-month ECL and Lifetime ECL are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

Loss allowances are recognised based on 12-month ECL for debt instruments that are
assessed to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is considered (o have
low credit risk if.

&+ the financiat instrument has a low rigk of default;

» the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash fiow obligations in the near
term; and

» adverse changes in econcmic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fuffii its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Company and its subsidiaries have established a policy to perform an assessment, at the
end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the rigk of defauit occurring
over the remaining iife of the financial instrument.
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2,

2.3

}/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(centinued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i} Financial assets {continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)

Based on the above process, the Company and its subsidiaries classify credit exposures into
Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and Purchased or originated credit impaired ("POCI"), as described
below:

¥ Stage 1: When financial assets are first recognised, the Company and its subsidiaries
recognise an allowance based on 12-month ECL. Stage 1 financial assets also include
faciities where the credit risk has improved and the financial assets have been
reclassified from Stage 2. An instrument is considered to be no longer in default (ie., to
have cured) and therefore reclassified out of Stage 3 when it no longer meets arny of the
default criteria. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once
cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this
indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared to initial
recognition.

» Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Company and its subsidiaries records an aflowance for the |.ifetime ECL.
Stage 2 financial assets also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the
financial assets have been reclassified from Stage 3. An instrument is considered o be
no fonger in dafault (i.e., to have cured) and therefore reclassified out of Stage 3 when it
no fonger meets any of the default criteria. The decision whether to classify an asset as
Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the
cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to initial recognition,

» Stage 3: Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The Company and its subsidiaries
record an allowance for the Lifetime ECL.

» POCE POC! assets are financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition.
POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is
subsequently recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or
released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.

2.3

J)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets {continued)

Iimpairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)

In determining whether there is a significant deterioration or improvement in the credit risk of
a financial instrument, the Company and its subsidiaries will make an assessment based on
a mixture of qualitative and quantitative factors, both taking into account the actual
circumstances affecting the instrument. The Company and its subsidiaries will also consider
the illustrative indicators identified by the standard in this assessment:

B

B

An entity may assume that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initiat recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date;

Regardless of the way in which an entity assesses significant increases in credit risk,
there is a rebuttable presumption that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, An entity can rebut this presumption if the entity has reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, that demanstrates
that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition even though the
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. When an entily determines that
there have been significant increases in credit risk before contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, the rebuttable presumption does not apply;

An actual or expected significant change in the financial instrument’s external credit
rating,;

An actual or expecled internal credit rating downgrade for the borrower or decrease in
behavioural scoring used to assess credit risk internaily;

Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change in the borrower’s ability fo meet its debt
obtigations;

An actual or expected significant change in the operating results of the borrower; and
Other factors.

The Company and its subsidiaries consider a debt instrument to have low credit risk when its
credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’, or
when the exposure is fess than 30 days past due. _ :
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.3
B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i} Financiai assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assets

The Company and its subsidiaries define a financial instrument as in default, which is fully
aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets one or more of the following
criteria:

» Quantifative criteria

o The Company and its subsidiaries consider the use of the 90-day past due rebuttable
presumption, as allowed by the standard.

» Qualitative criteria

The customer meels unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the customer is in
significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:

o The customer is experiencing financial difficulty or is inscivent;
o The customer is in breach of financial covenant(s},

o An active market for that financial assets has disappeared because of financial
difficulties;

o Concessions have been granted by the Company and its subsidiaries, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the customer's financiat difficulty; or

o it is becoming probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganisation.

The criteria above have been applied to the financial instruments held by the Company and
its subsidiaries and are consistent with the definition of default used for internal credit risk
management purposes. The default definition has been applied consistently to model the
Probability of Defautt (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at Default (EAD)
throughout the Company and its subsidiaries’ expected loss calculation.

An instrument is considered to be no longer in default (i.e. to have cured) and therefore
reclassified out of Stage 3 when it no longer meets any of the default criteria. The decision
whether te classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit
grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase
in credit risk compared to initial recognition. The Company and its subsidiaries reclassify an
asset to Stage 1 when the credit grade of an asset becomes equivalent to ‘investment grade’,
or has increased by at least two notches when the credit grade at the time of default is
equivalent to ‘investment grade'. '
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

b

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i} Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets {continued})
Definition of default and credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries write-off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when the
asset is considered uncollectible, it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
conciuded that it has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Company and its subsidiaries write off an account when all
of the foliowing conditions are met:

» the asset is already an item-in-litigation with any of the following:
o nho propetties of the barrower could be attached,
the whereabouts of the borrower cannct be located;

o it would be more expensive for the Company and its subsidiaries to follow-up and
collect the amount, hence the Company and its subsidiaries have ceased
enforcement activity; and

o collections can no longer be made due fo insolvency of bankruptcy of the borrower.
restructuring is no longer possible; and
filing of legal case is not pessible.

Significant increase in credit risk

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by portfolic
and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets subject to ECL under the general
approach or their benchmark are graded by globally recognised credit rating agencies such
as S&P, Moody's and Fitch. It is the Company and its subsidiaries’ policy to measure ECLs
on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the Lifetime ECL. The
Company and its subsidiaries use the ratings from these credit rating agencies both to
determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the
Company and its subsidiaries may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant
increase in credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative
of such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a
timely basis.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued})
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.

2.3

Y

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i) Financial assets (conlinued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk {continued}

The Company and its subsidiaries monitor the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
significant increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that

o the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before an exposure
is in default;

o the criteria do not align with the paint in time when an asset falls below an investment
grade; and

o there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month PD
(stage 1} and lifetime PD (stage 2).

Measurement of expected credit losses

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and
are measured as follows:

o Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of
all cash shortfalls over the expected life (Lifetime ECLs) or cash shortfalis expected to
occur within 12 months after reporting date (12-month ECLS) of the financial asset
discounted by the effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows due to the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company and its subsidiaries expect to receive.

o Financial assels that are credit-impaired at the reporting date. as the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted by the effective interest rate.

General approach

Under the general approach, at each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries
recognise a loss allowance based on either 12-month ECLs or Lifetime ECLs, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in ¢redit risk on the financial instrument since
initial recognition. The changes in the loss allowance balance are recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

The Company and its subsidiaries apply the general approach for ECL calculation for cash
and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade lease receivables, loans 1o and
receivables from related parties, short-term prepayments and other receivables, and other
non-current financizl assets.

Simplified approach
Under the simplified approach, changes in credit risk are not tracked and loss aliowances are

measured at amounts equal to Lifetime ECL. The Company and its subsidiaries have elected
to use the simplified approach for its trade receivables.
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as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.3
»

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i} Financial assets {continued)

Estimates

Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month or fifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
PD, LGD, and EAD, defined as follows:

» PD

» LGD

The Probability of Default represents the likelihood of a customer defaulting on
its financial obligation, either over the next 12 months, or over the remaining life
of the obligation. PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are
calculated based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating tools
tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These
statistical models are based on internally compiled data comprising both
guantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is available, market data may also
be used to derive the PD. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating
classes, then this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs
are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated
prepayment rates.

The 12-month and lifetime PD represent the expected point-in-time probability of
a default over the next 12 months and remaining lifetime of the financial
instrument, respectively, based on conditions existing at the reporting date and
future economic conditions that affect credit risk.

The PD was identified using published exiernal credit ratings — Standard & Poor's
(S&P)-issued default rates. For counterparties without available data, benchmark
procedures were performed and the comparable companies’ default rates were
used as proxy for the PD of the counterparties.

The iLoss Given Default represents the Company and its subsidiaries’
expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure, taking into account the
mitigating effect of collateral, its expected value when realised and the time value
of money. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type of seniority of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage
loss per unit of exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be
made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and lifetime LGD is the
percentage of l0ss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining
expected lifetime of the loan.

The L.GD was determined by obtaining the equivalent Thomson Reuters-issued
market recovery rates based on the counterparty's S&P credit ratings. LGD was
then derived as one less the applicable recovery rate. For counterparties without
available data, benchmark procedures were performed and the comparable
companies’ recovery rates were used as proxy for the recovery rates of the
counterparties.

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,
taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date,
including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduied by contract or
otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2,

2.3

b/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (centinued)

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measturement (continued)
i} Financial assets (continued)

Estimates (continued)

When estimating the ECLs, the Company and its subsidiaries consider three scenarios (a
base case, an upside, and a downside). Each of these is associated with different ECL factors.
When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defaulted
batances are expected to be recovered, including the probability that such balances will cure
and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received from selling the asset.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a
financial instrument unless the Company and its subsidiaries have the legal right to call it
earlier,

The interest rate used to discount the ECLs of fixed-rate instruments is the approximate EIR
at initial recognition. For fioating rate financial instruments, the Company and its subsidiaries
used current EIR as at reporting date.

Forward looking information

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporate forward-looking information into both its
assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its
initiaf recognition and its measurement of ECL.

To do this, the Company and its subsidiaries consider a range of relevant forward-looking
macro-economic assumptions for the determination of unbiased general industry adjustments
and any related specific industry adjustments that support the calculation of ECLs. Based on
the Company and its subsidiaries’ evaluation and assessment, and after taking into
consideration external actual and forecast information, the Company and its subsidiaries
formulate a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as
arepresentative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing
two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabiiities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies, monetary authorities and selected private-sector and academic
institutions.

The Company and its subsidiaries have identified and documented key drivers of credit risk
and credit losses of each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical
data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and
credit losses.

In its ECL models, the Company and its subsidiaries rely on forward looking information as
economic inputs, such as GDP growth rates and inflation rates.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various
portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analysing histerical data over the
past nine years. The methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of future
economic conditions are reviewed regularly.

The Company and its subsidiaries have not identified any uncertain event that it has assessed
to be relevant to the risk of default occurring but where it is not able to estimate the impact on
ECL due to lack of reasonabie and supportable information.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.3
y)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued)
i} Financial assets {continued)

Estimates (continued)

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company and its subsidiaries seek (o use
collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms: cash, securities, real estate
and other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netling agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company and its subsidiaries’
consolidated statements of financial position.

However, the fair value of coltateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed,
at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basis. To the extent possible, the
Company and its subsidiaries use active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models. Non-financial coliateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data
provided by third parties such as mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices,

Reciassification

If the business model under which the Company and its subsidiaries hold the financial assets
changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement
requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in business model that resulis in reclassifying the
Company and its subsidiaries' financial assets.

Reclassifications of financial assets are only permitted, or required, in rare circumstances
which does not include a simpte change in business model,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

2.3
y)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Cempany and its
subsidiaries’ consolidated statement of financial position} when:

+# The rights o receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

B The Company and its subsidiaries have transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or have assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; or

» The Company and its subsidiaries have transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) have transferred substantiaily alt the risks and rewards of the
asset, or {b) have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, hut have transferred controt of the asset.

When the Company and its subsidiaries have transferred its rights {o receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, evaluates if, and to what extent, it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially ail of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company and its subsidiaries continue to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company and its subsidiaries
couid be required to repay.

iiy Financiai liabiiities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as either financial liabilities at FVPL or
loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial fiabilties include trade and other payables,
accruals, corporate bond, loans and borrowings, borrowings from and payabies to related
parties and tenant deposits. The Company and its subsidiaries did not have financial liabilities
at FVPL during the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings or other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EiR amertisation process.

Amortised cost is calcuiated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

2,
2.3

)/

k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
iiy Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantiafly different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the consclidated statements of profit or loss.

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settie the liabilities simultaneously,

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumutated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and
equipment and borrowing cost for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals,
the Company and its subsidiaries depreciate them separately based on their specific useful
jives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated statements of profit
of loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for
a provision are met.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Buildings and structures 15 to 48 years
Machinery and equipment 51t0 10 years
Means of transportation 6 to 10 years
Office equipment 3to 5years
Others 3to o years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised are
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the gifference
petween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated statements of profit or foss when the asset is derecognised.

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts unti! they are no longer in use and no
further depreciation and amartisation is charged to current operations.
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b

m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Construction in progress

Construction in progress is initially measured at cost and subsequently transferred to property,
equipment or intangible asset when completed.

Leases
Leases prior to 1 January 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease if fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets)
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or
those assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Company and its subsidiaries as & lessee

All lease contracts are classified at the inception date as operating leases as the leases do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.

The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessor

Leases in which the Company and its subsidiaries do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising
is accounted for on a straight-fine basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. '
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

m) L eases (continued)
Leases prior to 1 January 2019 (continued)
Sale and leaseback
The Company and its subsidiaries entered into agreements for the sale of its villas and
apartments (properties). Under these agreements, the buyers may choose to engage the
Company and its subsidiaries as a service provider {0 manage the short-stay hospitality
services for a fee, in which, the Company and its subsidiaries are obliged to manage the
operation of the properties so that the buyer will receive a certain amount of income.
Agreements where the buyer engaged the Company and its subsidiaries to be a service
provider was identified to be sale and leaseback transactions and are accounted for in

accordance with |1AS 17.

These sales and leaseback transactions are assessed as operating leases and as such, the
Company and its subsidiaries derecognise the asset and:

a. If it is ciear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit or loss shall be
recognised immediately.

b. If the sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately
except that, if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below market price,
it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the lease payments over the period for
which the asset is expected lo be used.

c. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value shall be deferred and
amertised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.
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2.
2.3

m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

l.eases effective as of 1 January 2019

The Company and its subsidiaries assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessee

The Company and its subsidiaries apply a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company and its
subsidiaries recognise lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i} Right-of-use assets

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful fife
and the lease term, as follows:

Land 49 to 50 years
Building and structures 2 to 7 years

If the Company and its subsidiaries are reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment. The Company and its subsidiaries apply cost
model in IAS 40, Investment properties to its right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment properties.

(i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company and its subsidiaries recognise lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease ferm.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substence fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and its subsidiaries and payments of penallies for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company and its subsidiaries exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the
pericd on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.3

mj

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
Leases (continued)

Leases effective as of 1 January 2019 (continued)

{i5) Lease liabilities {continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company and its subsidiaries use the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to refiect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a medification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(iti) Sale and leaseback transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries continue to account for the sale and leaseback transactions
for apartments completed before the initial application of IFRS 16, as a sale and leaseback
transaction. The Company and its subsidiaries recognised the right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for the lease back on 1 January 2018, measured in the same way as other right-of-
use assets and lease Habilities at that date.

(iv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company and its subsidiaries apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). it
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to [eases of office equipment
that are considered of low value {i.e., below VND120 miflion). Leass payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessor

Leases in which the Company and its subsidiaries do not transfer substantially ali the risks
and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is inciuded in revenue
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.3
n)

o)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productien of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
pericd they cocur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company and
its subsidiaries incur in connection with the borrowing of funds.

The interest capitalised is calculated using each entity within Company and its subsidiaries’
weighted average cost of barrowings after adjusting for borrowings associated with specific
developments. Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amounts
capitalised is the gross interest incurred on those borrowings less any investment income
arising on their temporary investment. Interest is capitalised as from the commencement of
the development work untif the date of practical completion. The capitalisation of finance costs
is suspended if there are prolonged periods when development activity is interrupted. interest
is also capitalised on the purchase cost of a site of property acquired specifically for
redevelopment, but only where activities necessary to prepare the asset for redevelopment
are in progress.

Investment properties

investment properties comprise completed property, property under construction or re-
development and ROU assets that meet the definition of investment properties thatis held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, Properties held under leases are classified as
investment properties when they are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production or administrative
functions.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction
costs include transfer taxes, professional fees for legal services and initial leasing
commissions to bring the property {0 the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating.
The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property
at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent to initizl recognition, investment properties are stated at cost including
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation andfor amortisation and impairment.
Depreciation and amortisation of investment properties are calculated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful ife of each asset as follows:

Land use rights 45 to 50 years
Buildings and structures 27 1o 80 years
Machinery and equipment 7 t0 10 years

No amortisation is charged on the land use rights presented as investment properties with
indefinite terms.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner accupation or commencement of an operating lease.
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o)

p}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
investment properties (continued)

The transfer from investment property to owner-cccupied property or inventories does not
change the cost or the carrying value of the property for subsequent accounting at the date
of change in use. When the Compary and its subsidiaries decide to dispose of an investment
property without development, it continues to treat the property as an investment property
until it is derecognised and does not treat it as inventory.

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in the consclidated statements of profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumutated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in the consolidated statements of profit or loss in the peried in which
the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful ife
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible asset,

Amortisation is caiculated on a straight-line basls over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Computer software 3io 5 years
Land use rights 27 years

An intangible asset is derecognised upon dispesal {i.e., at the date the recipient obtains
control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (caiculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.
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r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
inventories

inventory property

Property acquired or being constructed for sale or to be held for long-term lease that meets
the requirements of outright revenue recognition in the ordinary course of business, rather
than to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as inventory and is measured at the
tower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost inciudes
» Freehold, leasehold and development rights for land;
= Amounts paid/payable to contractors for construction; and

» Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees
for legal services, property transfer taxes, construction overheads and other related costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based
on market prices at the reporting date less costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventory recognised in profit or loss on disposal is determined with reference to
the specific costs incurred on the property scld and an allocation of any non-specific costs
based on reasonable relative cost basis.

Qther inventorias

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present
iccation and condition and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of direct
materials, labour and other attributable manufacturing overheads.

Net realisabie value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
iess the estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Sales commissions

Sales commissions that are directly related to promoting sale of inventory properties are
capitalised under the short-term prepaid expenses and other receivable accounts in the
consolidated statements of financial position and subsequently expensed when the Company
and its subsidiaries recognise revenue from selling of related inventory properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and & reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company and its subsidiaries expect
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
vitually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabifity. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost.

Provision for assurance-type warranty expenses

The Company and its subsidiaries estimate provision for assurance-type warranty expanses
based on revenue and available information about the repair of real estate properties sold in
the past.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company and its subsidiaries assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company and its subsidiaries estimate the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGUs’ fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The recoverable amournt is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time vaiue
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Company and its subsidiaries base its impairment calculation on detaiied budgets and
forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company and its
subsidiaries' CGU to which the individual assets are allccated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a fong-term growth rate
is calculated and appiied to project future cash flows.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. For such properties, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For assets excluding goodwili, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company and its subsidiaries estimate the asset's or
CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consoclidated
statements of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

The following assets have specific characteristics for impairment testing:
Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Tenant deposits

For the tenant deposits classified as financial liabilities, they are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial fair
value and the nominal amount is included as a component of operating lease income and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For the tenant deposits which do not qualify as financial liabilities, they are measured at cost.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of financial position comprise cash
at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (freasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or canceliation of the Company and its subsidiaries’ own

equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if
reissued, is recognised in the share premium.

57




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

x)

7

aa}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {cantinued)
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company and its subsidiaries classify non-current assets and disposal groups as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than
through continuing use. Such non-cuirent assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale are meastred at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the sale with be withdrawn. Management
must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, piant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once
classified as held for sale,

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from non-current
items in the consolidated statements of financial pesition.

Demerger

Demerger where the Company is the demerged company is conducted as follows:

» Assets, liabilities transferred to the new company is deducted to the respective items in
the consclidated statements of financial position by the carrying value at the date of
demerger,

» Difference between assets and liabilities transferred to the new company is deducted to
equity in the consolidated statements of financial position; and

= No gain or loss is recognised for the demerger transaction.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company and its
subsidiaries’ position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements when material.

GCther reserve

Changes in other comprehensive income, day 1 profit or loss from financial instrurments with

related parties of the Company and its subsidiaries are recognised in other reserve in the
consolidated staterments of changes in eguity.
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2.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policles and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company and its subsidiaries’
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for
the adoption of new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January 2018 The
Company and its subsidiaries elected to early adopt Amendments to [FRS 3, Definition of a
Business for the reporting period beginning on 1 January 2018, the date of first appiication.
Apart from this early adoption, the Company and its subsidiaries have not early adopted any
standard, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The Company and its subsidiaries apply, for the first time, IFRS 16 Leases using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1 January 2018. Under this method,
the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised at the date of initial application, the nature and effect of the changes as
a resuit of this new accounting standard are disclosed below.

Several other amendments and interpretations which are applicable for the first time in 2019,
but either not refevant or do not have an impact on consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it repiaces 1AS 17, Leases, IFRIC 4, Determining
whether an Amangement contains a Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases-incentives and
SIC-27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value' assets
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payrnents
(i.e., the lease liability} and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease fiability upon the occurrence of certain
events {e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liabiiity as an adjustment to the right-
of-uge asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will
continug 1o classify all leases using the same classification principle as in 1AS 17 and
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors 1o make more extensive disclosures than under
IAS 17. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Company and its subsidiaries adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective transition

methad (l.e., 10 apply IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying
the standard recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2019).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases {continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. The Company and its subsidiaries
therefore did not apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying A8 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company and its subsidiaries have elected to apply the following practical expedients
provided by the standard:

» Use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

» The Company and its subsidiaries did not apply the requirements of IFRS 16 to leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months from the date of initial application; and

» The Company and its subsidiaries exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

The Company and its subsidiaries have elected to use the exemption proposed by the
standard on the following contracts.

» Lease contracts for which the lease term ends within 12 months from the lease
commencement date; and

» Lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low vaiue.
Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Company and its subsidiaries have lease contracts for various items of land and
huildings. Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Company and its subsidiaries classified each
of its leases {as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantiaily all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the Company and its subsidiaries; otherwise, it
was classified as an operating lease, Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement
of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if fower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned between interest
{recognised as finance costs) and reduction of the lease liability. In an operating lease, the
jeased property was not capitalised, and the lease payments were recognised as rent
expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lsase term. Any
prepaid rent, deferred revenue and accrued rent were recognised under prepayments,
deferred revenues and accruals, respectively.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company and its subsidiaries applied a singie recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients,
which has been applied by the Company and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures {continued)
IFRS 16 Leases {continued)

Impact of IFRS 16

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 (increase/{decrease)) is as
follows:
1 January 2019

VND million
Assets
Right-of-use assets 883,781
intangible assets (364,452)
Construction in progress {456)
investment properties under construction 346,504
Completed investment properties 167,154
Long-term prepaymenis (47,558}
Long-term deposits and receivables from related parties 430,891
Deferred tax assets 58,241
Total assets 1,473,994
Liabilities
Short-term accruals (358,610)
Long-term deferred revenues to related parties (247,858)
Short-term borrowings, deposits from and payables to related (14,817)
parties
Lease [iabilities 2040677
Deferred tax liabilities 56,713
Total liabilities 1,484,105
Net impact on equity (10,111)
Retained earnings (10,111)

Nor-controlfing interest
Leases previously accounted for as operaling leases

The Company and its subsidiaries recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those
leases previously classified as operating leases, except for shori-term leases and leases of
low-value assets.

The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if
the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based
on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease
payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date
of initial application.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
iFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Based on the foregoing, as at 1 January 2019;

» Right-of-use assets of VND884 billion were recognised and presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

» Long-term prepayments of VND48 billion were classified to right-of-use assets,
construction in progress of VND456 million were classified to right-of-use assets and
completed investment properties of VND167 billion were classified from right-of-use
assets, investment properties under construction of VND347 billion were classified from
right-of-tise assets,

» Long-term deposits and receivables from related parties of VND431 billion were
recognised, intangible assets of VND364 billion, short-term borrowings, deposits from and
payables to related parties of VND15 bilfion and long-term deferred revenues lo related
parties of VND248 billion were derecognised in relation fo the sublease which is a finance
lease,

= Deferred tax assets of VNDSS billion and deferred tax iiabiiities of VNDSE billion were
recognised;

» Lease ligbilities of VND2,050 biliion were recognised,

» Accruals of VND358 billion in relation to the previous operating leases were
derecognised; and

= The net effect of these adjustments had been adjusted to retained eamings (VND10
billion}.

The lease liability as at 1 January 2018 as can be reconciled to the operating lease
commitments as of 31 December 2018 follows:

{1 January 2019

VND million

QOperating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 2,241,184
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 10.43%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 January 2019 2,049677
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 2,048,877
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

2,
24

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disciosures (continued)
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments invoive
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 fncome Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of 1AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating o
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

b Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;

» The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities;

= Mow an entity determines taxable profit (1ax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and

=  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or maore other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty needs to be followed.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Company and its subsidiaries considered whether it
has any uncertain tax positions. The Company and its subsidiaries determined, based on its
tax compliance assessment, that it is probable that its tax treatments {including those for the
subsidiaries) will be accepted by the taxation authorities. The Interpretation had no an impact
on the conscligated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 8, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the
instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The
amendments to iIFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of
an event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of
which party pays of receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the
contract. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. : :
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
Amendments to IAS 18: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settiement

The amendments to [AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settiement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is
required 1o determine the current service cost for the remainder of the pericd after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settiement, using the actuarial assumptions used fo remeasure
the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the pian and the
plan assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine the net interest for the
remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtaiment or settlement using the net
defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the pian
assets after that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit
liability (asset).

These amendments had no impact on the consclidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as it did not have any plan amendments, curtaiments, or saettlements
during the period.

Amendments fo IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to fong-term interests in an associate
or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is
relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-
term interests.

The amendments also clarify that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
josses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment,
recognised as adjustments 1o the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise
from applying IAS 28 [nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as the Company and its subsidiaries do not have long-term interests in its
associate and joint venture to which the equity method is not appiied.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of & business in IFRS 3
Business Combinations fo help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing
elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive,
narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and infroduce an optional fair value
concentration test. New illustrative examples were provided along with the amendments.

The Company and its subsidiaries elected to early adopt these amendments for the reporting
period beginning on January 1, 2018. These amendments apply prospectively to transactions
or other events that occur on or after the date of initial application. The Company and its
subsidiaries have applied these amendments for the acquisition transactions during the year.
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24

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued})
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)
Annual improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

» IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it applies the reguirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring previously heid interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint
operation at fair vatue. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest
in the joint operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period baginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as there is no transaction where the Company and its subsidiaries oblain
control of a business that is previously a joint operation.

#  IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemenis

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business as defined in IFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
early appiication permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as there is no transaction where the Company and its subsidiaries obtain
joint control of the joint operation. '
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2.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
Annual iImprovements 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)

»  IAS 12 Incaome Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income fax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than te distributions
to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where it originally recognised
those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application permitied. When the entity first applies those amendments, it
applies them to the income tax conseguences of dividends recognised on or after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period.

Since dividends received from investees are not subject to income tax under local corporate
income tax regulation, these amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

B IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with early application permitted.

Since the Company and its subsidiaries' current practice is in line with these amendments,

they had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilittes, and the accompanying
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disciosures relating to the Company and its subsidiaries' exposure to risks and
uncertainties as presented in Note 33 includes:

Capital management,
Financial instruments risk management and policies; and
Sensitivity analyses disciosures.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company and its subsidiaries' accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on
the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company and its subsidiaries applied the following judgments that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue recognition and measurement of progress

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue when it satisfies an identified
performance obiligation by transferring a promised good or setvice to a customer, A good or
service is considered to be transferred when the customer obtains conirol. The Company and
its subsidiaries determine, at contract inception, whether it will transfer control of a promised
good or service over time. |f the Company and ifs subsidiaries do not satisfy a performance
obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time,

In determining the revente recognition for the sale of residential properties, the Company and
its subsidiaries determine whether the Company and its subsidiaries’ performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and its subsidiaries and the Company
and its subsidiaries have an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
The properties have no alternative use for the Company and its subsidiaries due o contractual
restrictions. Rowever, the Company and its subsidiaries have no enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date as there is no legal recourse or legal basis requiring the
customer, who has breached or defaulted under the contract, to compensate the Company
and its subsidiaries with an amount representing the Company and its subsidiaries’ incurred
cost plus a reasonable profit margin. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the completed residential property is handed over.

For construction services, the Company and its subsidiaries concluded that the revenue is to
be recognised over time because the Company and its subsidiaries’ performance creates or
enhances an asset (i.e. work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The Company and its subsidiaries determined that the input method is the best
method in measuring progress of the construction services because there is a direct
relationship between the Company and its subsidiaries’ effort and the transfer of service to
the customer. The Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue on the basis of the actual
costs incurred relative 1o the total estimated costs to complete the service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgements {continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers {continued)

Revenue recognition and measurement of progress {continued)

For the sale of management services, the Company and its subsidiaries concluded that
revenue is to be recognised over time because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Company and its subsidiaries. The fact that another
entity would not need to re-perform the services that the Company and ifs subsidiaries have
provided to date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the Company and its subsidiaries’ performance as it performs. The Company and
its subsidiaries determined that output method used in measuring the progress of the
performance obligation faithfully depicts the Company and its subsidiaries’ performance in
transferring control of the services to the customer.

dentify the contract with the cusfomer

The Company and its subsidiaries identify the contracts that meet all the criteria required
under IFRS 15 for a valid revenue contract, Each type of document per revenue stream is
specifically assessed by the Company and its subsidiaries by considering the following
attributes:

» the parties have approved the contract and are commifted to perform their respective
obligations;

» each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred can be identified;
= payment terms can be identified;
= the contract has commerciat substance; and

» it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitied in
exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

Consideration payable to customers

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise consideration payabile to customers when cash
amounts are paid or expected to be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries to the customers
or to other parties that purchase the Company and its subsidiaries’ goods or services from
the customers. An amount that is considered as consideration payable to customers shall be
accounted for as a reduction of the transaction price and, therefore, of revenue unless the
payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer
transfers to the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company and its subsidiaries determine that incentives provided to customers through
interest support are consideration payable to customers. Interest support to be paid to the
bank in favor of customers represents an incentive paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
to encourage customers to purchase residential properties. This incentive is accounted for as
a reduction of the transaction price based on the present value of interest support payable.

Performance obligations

The Company and its subsidiaries identify performance obligations by considering whether
the promised gocds or services in the contract are distinct goods or services. A good of
service is distinct when the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own
or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer and the Company
and its subsidiaries’ promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately
identifiable from other promises in the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Ferformance obligations (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries integrate the land area, various iand developments, the
house and other significant activities (e.g., water distribution, electricity, drainage, sewerage
system, efc.) as promised in its contract with customers. These promises are combined into
one distinct performance obligation which is the sale of residential property.

The Company and its subsidiaries also consider the provision of management services as a
separate performance cbligation from the sale of residential property. The customer can
benefit from the property and the management service on their own, which are separately
identifiable since they are not integrated into a combined output, do not significantly modify
or customise each other and are not highly interrelated.

Warranties

The Company and its subsidiaries generally provide warranties for general repairs of defects
that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. As such, the warranties are assurance-
type warranties, which the Company and its subsidiaries account for under 1AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assets.

Significant financing component

The Company and its subsidiaries assess whether a financing component from its contracts
with customers is significant by considering all refevant facts and circumstances such as the
difference, if any, between the amount of the promised consideration and the cash selling
price of the promised goods or services, and the combined effect of both the expected length
of time between when the entity transfers the promised goods or services 1o the customer
and when the customer pays for those goods or services, and the prevaiting interest rates in
the relevant market.

The Company and its subsidiaries determine the financing component for each payment
scheme. Spot cash transactions constitute a significant financing component due to the
difference between the timing of the payment and the transfer of control over the purchased
units. In the case of installment payments, the initial down payments amounting to 30% of the
selling price of the property are assessed to have no significant financing component as these
are used to protect the Company and its subsidiaries from the customer's failure to perform
its obiigations under the contract. The Company and its subsidiaries determine the financing
component for the remaining instaliment payments received from customers for the sale of
residential properties at the contract level. With reference to the calculated interest, the
remaining installment payments for contracts within two to three years prior to the handover
of the purchased units may or may not have a significant financing component and will be
assessed on a per contract basis. As a consequence, the Company and its subsidiaries shall
adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money in
determining the transaction price of its contracts with customers.

In determining the interest to be applied to the amount of consideration, the Company and its
subsidiaries concluded that the borrowing rate of the Company at a similar period (for twa to
three years) is appropriate because this is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Company and its subsidiaries and its
customer at contract inception.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {continued)
Judgements {continued)

Assessment of control

The Company assesses that it controls another entity ("an investee”), regardiess of the nature
of its involvement with an entity, when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability te affect those returns through its power over
the investee, normally represented by ownership of voting rights. The Company assesses its
control over an invesiee despite having more or less than a majority of the voting rights based
on potential voting rights or other contractual agreements,

For the acquisitions of subsidiaries, the Company assesses that it controls an acquired
subsidiary since the dates when the Company or its subsidiaries were named on the
Shareholder Register of the subsidiary as from that date, the Company and its subsidiaries
can be fully exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the invesiee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Business combinations

The Company acquires subsidiaries, At the time of acquisition, the Company considers
whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of a group
of assets and Habilities. The Company accounts for an acquisition as a business combination
where an integrated set of activities and significant processes are acquired in addition to the
property.

When the acquisition of subsidiaries does not represent a business, it is accounted for as an
acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities (Note 5.2). The cost of the acquisition is
allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and no
goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.

Classification of property

The Company and its subsidiaries determine whether a property is classified as investment
property, property and equipment or inventory property:

¥ Investment property comprises iand and buildings (principally cffices and retail property)
which are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company and
its subsidiaries, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to
earn rental incorne and capital appregiation. These buildings are substantially rented to
tenants and not intended to be soid in the ordinary course of business;

» Property and equipment comprise property which are occupied substantially for use by,
or in the operations of, the Company and its subsidiaries; and

» Inventory property comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, Principally, this is residential property and commercial property that the
Company and its subsidiaries develop and intend to seli before or on compietion of
construction. _ o - L : C S
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3,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Property fease classification — the Company and its subsidiaries as lessors

The Company and its subsidiaries, as a lessor, have entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Company and its subsidiaries evaluated the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, particularly the duration of the lease terms, minimum
lease payments and any options to cancel the leases to determine whether it retains or
transfers all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and to account
for the leases as operating or finance leases accordingly.

Sale and lease back

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into agreements with different buyers for the sale
of its residential properties. Under the said agreements, the buyers may engage the Company
as a service provider to manage the short-stay hospitality services for a fee, in which, the
Company is obliged to manage the operation of the residential properties so that the buyer
will receive a certain amount of income from the results of operations of the said properties.

Management assessed that the agreements should be accounted for as sale and lease back
transactions in accordance with IFRS 16 as the Company and its subsidiaries are assigned
to use the property (a specified asset) in operating its lease services and is obliged to pay the
buyers certain amounts in return.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Company and its subsidiaries based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
of circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consclidated
statement of financial position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow
(DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See Note 33 for further disclosures.

The Company and its subsidiaries shall measure a financial asset at FVPL at its fair value at
initial recognition. If the fair value is evidenced other than by a guoted price in active market
for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, day-1 difference shall be deferred. After initial recognition, the Company
and its subsidiaries shall recognise that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent
that it arises from a change in a factor {including time) that market participants would {ake into
account when pricing the asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimates and assumptions (continued)
Warranty provisions

Provisions for assurance-type warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold
to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The Company and its
subsidiaries estimate provision for real estate property warranty based on sales volume and
currently available information about repairing expenses of apartments, vilas and shop-
houses sold in the past. The Initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually {Note
28.3).

Taxes (Note 8)
Significant estimate is required to determine the total provision for current and deferred taxes.

There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination and
timing of payment is uncertain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise liabitities for current taxes based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be dus. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of
business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreemenits, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense already recorded. The Company and its subsidiaries establish provisions, based on
reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities. The amount
of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and
differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending
on tha conditions prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions.

Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valug (NRV) (Note 16). NRV of
completed inventory property is assessed with reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company and its subsidiaries having
taken suitable external advice and in the light of recent market transactions.

NRYV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market
prices at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete
construction, cost to sell and take into account estimate of the time value of money to the date
of completion,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {(continued)
Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimation of useful lives of properiy, equipment, investment property and intangible
assets (excluding goodwill)

The Company and its subsidiaries estimate the useful lives of property, equipment, intangible
assets and investment property based on internal technical evaluation and experience with
simitar assets. Estimated useful lives of property, equipment, intangible assets exciuding
goodwill and investment property are reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical and commercial
obsolescence and other limits on the use of the assets. In 2019, there were no significant
changes made in the useful lives and residual values of the property, equipment, intangible
assets excluding goodwill and investment property (Note 10, Note 11 and Note 12}.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (*CGU")
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is
pased on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the future and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company and its subsidiaries are not yet committed t0
or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of the CGU being tested,
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Company and its subsidiaries. The key assumptions used {o determine the
recoverable amount for the different CGUs are disclosed and further explained in Notes 10,
11, 12, 13 and 14,

impairment of goodwill

The Company and its subsidiaries determine whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis
every 31 December, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which the
goodwilt is allocated. Estimating value in use requires management to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the CGL and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Management determined that the
geodwill amounting to VND700 billion as of both 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
(see Note 11) is not impaired.

73



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued}
Estimates and assumptions (continued)
Estimates on IFRS 15
Revenue recognition for construction contract

When a contract for the sale of a property upon completion of construction is judged to be a
construction contract, revenue is recognised using the percentage-of-completion method as
construction progresses. The Company and its subsidiaries consider the terms and conditions
of the contract, including how the contract was negotiated and the structural elements that the
customer specifies when identifying individual projects as construction contracts. The
percentage of completion is estimated by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date and the estimated costs
to complete.

Alfocation of fransaction price

Contracts for the sale of property may include more than one performance obligation. As a
result, the transaction price shall be allocated to each identified performance obligation in
proportion to their relative stand-alone selling prices. The Company and its subsidiaries
estimate that the stand-alone selling prices will be aliocated using the observable prices of
the type of goods likely to be provided and the services rendered under similar circumstances
to similar customers.

Moreover, the Compary and its subsidiaries estimate that if a discount is given to customers,
such discount shall also be alfocated proportionately to all performance obligations in the
contract. The proportionate allocation of the discount in those circumstances is a
consequence of the Company and its subsidiaries allocating the transaction price to each
performance obligation.

Significant financing component

Generally, the Company and its subsidiaries receive short-term and long-term advances from
its customers.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, for short-term advances, the Company and its subsidiaries
used the practical expedient. As such, the Company and its subsidiaries will not adjust the
promised amount of the consideration for the effects of a financing component in contracts,
where the Company and its subsidiaries expect, at contract inception, that the pericd between
the time the customer pays for the good or service and when the Company and its subsidiaries
transfer that promised good or service to the customer will be one year or less.

On the other hand, the Company and its subsidiaries sell pre-completed properties where the
construction's lead time after signing the contract is two to three years. This type of contract
includes two alternative payment options for the customer, L.e., payment of the transaction
price at instaliment basis until property is delivered or payment in advance at contract
inception. The Company and its subsidiaries concluded that there is a significant financing
compaonent for those contracts where the customer elects to pay in advance considering the
length of time between the customer's payment and the transfer of the properties to the
customer, and the prevailing interest rates in the market. The Company and its subsidiaries
capitalize the interest on the advances received from customers with a significant financing
component as part of the cost of inventories. In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries
classify the outstanding balance of advances from customers as down payment from
customers.

The significant financing component is mainly refated to down payment from customers (Note
27).
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimates and assumptions {continued)

Estimates (upon adoption of IFRS 16)

Estimating the discount rate (upon adoption of IFRS 16) (Note 24)

The present value of the lease payment is determined using the discount rate representing
the rate of interest applicable for currency of the lease contract and for similar tenor, corrected
by the average credit spread of entities of the Company and its subsidiaries, observed in the
period when the lease contract commences or is modified.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements
are disclosed below. The Company and Its subsidiaries intend to adopt these new and
amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the
definition of ‘material’ acress the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The
new definition states that, "Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
infarmation about a specific reporting entity.’

The amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a s:gmﬂcant impact on
the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

5. SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS DURING THE YEAR

51 Disposal of Prime Land Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company ("Prime Land
JSC")

On 28 March 2019, under Share Transfer Agreements signed between the Company and a
subsidiary with counterparties, the Company and the aforementioned subsidiary have
disposed all shares in Prime Land JSC for a total consideration of VND2413 biliion.
Accordingly, the Company recognised a gain with the value of VND1,483 billion from this
transaction in the consolidated statement of profit or loss {Note 7.3).

6.2 Acguisition of group of assets

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have acquired shares of the following
companies from counterparties, Management has reviewed and assessed that the acquisition
of shares of these companies is the acquisition of group of assets, rather than business
combination. The total consideration for each of these acquisitions was allocated to the assets

and liabilities acquired based on their relative fair values at acquisition date. Accordingly, a ¢
part of consideration was recognised in inventories, inventory properties under construction %X
and construction in progress. The non-controlling interests were also recognised at their ‘33

relative proportien of the interests in the assets and liabilities acquired. These acquired assets
and liabilities are presented in the same categories as other similar assets and fiabilities held
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Acquisition of Green City JSC, a new subsidiary

On 1 July 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the acquisition of 90% shares
of Green City JSC from counterparties for a total consideration of VND15,474 billion. As a
result, Green City JSC became a subsidiary of the Company. At the date of acquisition, Green
City JSC is the owner of a potential real estate project. The Company and its subsidiaries
recognised a land development right amounting to VND10,342 billion.

Acquisition of Delfa JSC, a new subsidiary

On 8 July 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the acquisition of 100% shares
of Delta JSC from counterparties for a total consideration of VND4,920 billien. As a result,
Delta JSC became a subsidiary of the Company. At the date of acquisition, Deita J8C is the
owner of a potential real estate project. The Company and its subsidiaries recognised a land
development right amounting to VND4,066 biliion. '

76



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

6. MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED ENTITIES

Proportion of voting right held by non-controlling interests:

Name 2079 2018
Vietnam Investment JSC 30.50% 30.50%
Raoyal City JSC 42.15% 42 15%
Berjaya VFC LLC 32.50% 32.50%
Berjaya VIUT LLC 2.10% 2.10%
Can Gio JSC 0.11% 0.11%
Gia Lam LLC 158.00% 15.00%

Proportion of effective equity interest held by non-~-controliing interests:

Name 2019 2018
Vietnam Investment JSC 31.38% 31.36%
Roya! City JSC 42 15% 42.15%
Berjaya VFC LLC 39.22% 32.50%
Berjaya VIUT LLC 11.83% 2.11%
Can Gio JSC 1.44% 0.11%
Gia lam LLC 16.05% 16.05%

Accumulated balances of material non-controfling interests:
Currency: VND million

Name 2018 2018
Vietnam Investment JSC 1,712,700 2,022.103
Royai City JSC 1,210,665 1,125,749
Berjava VFC LLC 1,255,187 1,005,924
Berjava VIUT LLC 1,492,215 262,429
Can Gic J8C 649 636 49,911
Gia Lam LLC 2,252,769 196,999

Profiti{loss) atiocated to material non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December
201¢ and 31 December 2018:

Currency. VND million

Name 2018 2018
Vietnam lnvestrment JSC 82,781 206,446
Royal City JSC 94,725 46,782
Berjaya VFC LILC 35,761 39,464
Berjaya VIUT LLC 18,192 10,173
Can Gio JSC B.516 8,605
Gia Lam LLC 2,071,376 95,814

The summarised financial information of these entities is provided below.

77

T
K ﬁ_ij}'l’:r;.
CORG -
THH
Ty
BTN
| NHA
Mg
4T

R i)



8/

- 0£0'L - - - 056°108 sisasep Buonuos
-uoy o} plred SpuanIMG
921202 g9lLg'g Z6L'81 19.'6E G22'v6 194’28 sisaual Buyjonuoo
~LOU O} SIGEINQUNY
€11'G06'T1 SYL'ZHOE 968'421 £92°601 LY 018°¢9Z X€) JO 18U ‘B0
ansusyaidwo ;0]
£11'G06°2t SYLTFOT 96E'LL) £9Z°601 30L'¥Z2 0.6'€5T deal ayp i0) Jyoid
{yoo'eLe's) {ge5'01G) {6 vy} 61g'22) - (Bot'62) S9SUDAXS Xe BLUoOL|
L2y'eLL 9L £0L'265°2 Shr'LZe 825°8¢1 864982 BLZ'SHE XE} 84048q Jyoid
{/£2'80%) {rec't) {ca) - 4 - S}802 8DueLy
OLE'SO0'E 0/8'¥65°2 Go0'222 #20'0¢1 0T1LL 210928 WO BoUBUL4
S8 LEZFEL {co9) {1c20) {o01) 903'Ly 202'51 {sso}youd Bugresado
{t£) {29) - - - {¥12'6} sasuadxa Buesado sewlQ
9P or - - A LGL2 awoouw Buieredo JaulD
(118'688'1) - - - {zg1) {959'68) sasuadxs
uognguisp pue Bulag
{ctg'09s) {98%) {2£2) (g04) {0z6's) (r59'za) sosuadxs aajRASILILIIY
SZ6FEO DL - - - 9£8°2s +05'P61 J50ud ssoun)
{182'26L'8) - - - (5G0'862) {099'gcs) S3[ES JO 1800
0L2'Z82'se - - - 165058 YoL'esL'L anusasy
DT Wwe B D8 019 ueY 2T iNIA eheliag 571 DA efebeg osr Ao tedoy asr

JUSLLFSAAUL WRUIDIA
LoNpLE ONA SAoualing

‘BLOZ SOqLISda(] |E POpUD LA B 10} SSO| JO JJoid JO SIUSWDIRYS pasUewLng

{penunuos) SALIINT GINMO-A1LNYd TVRIFLYIN ‘g

papud Uy} JESA U} 10} pUE §L0Z JOGUWaTa( 1¢ B se
(ponunuoo) SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIL GILvaltOSNOD 3HL OL SJLON

Auedwon %00)8 JUIop SaWOoYUIA



64

- sisalapy Bugonuoeo

-UoU 0] pled spuaping
PLB'GE 509'8 £21'01 ¥ov'6g 8.9y Optr 962 sisasojui Bugionuoo
-Uou 0} AZINGHRY
068'C65 58Y°L8L 850 LY arl ‘ozt L1S'82 251948 X3 JO 39U ooy
aajsuayasdwos (g0
06865 Sev'Lss 850° Ly 281'02) bLE8L 26.°948 Jeah aug 10} 3oid
{Zev'Lo1) {go9'g61) (1z2'01t) {Fa9'vl) 6¥1 {985'665'L) awosu{sasuadxa)
XE) aitloou]
ZER'YS] £51'09¢6 612158 Z58'vEL F4: 0 geei9gL’? XE} 2403 150.d
- (84) ) (€2) {&rsog) - $]500 soUBUl ]
PIG'GPR 1£9'266 958" 7SS 852'0%1 92€£°G9l 6E1L'2LE alI0dUl aouel4
(z92'08) {oot'as) {025°T) (c89's) {s9's8) 86L'YSL'L {ssoilayoid Bunesadg
(2) {zo0'e) )] {089} {922'0%) (88) sasuadxe Buiessdo 1aui0
85 v - ocL A 1G5'81 awooul Bunesedo JBYI0
(B1e0¢) - - - {oge's) (812'500) sosuadxo
uonnquIsp pue Buyes
{3056'09) (rp9'cs) (zos'e) {s£g'g) (6194} (182'5¢2) SISUSUXS DAREASILILLPY
) ) - - 180y 9vR'985'Z 3yoid ss04g
- - - - (29zZ'¥0L) {669'099'9) SS{BS J0 1500
- - - - BGZ' LGL SPSEST'8 anuanay
277 wen ey JSI 015 uen sTilniaefeliag o7 odAefeliag  ogr Mo ehoy asr

uoljlield (NA Aouann

JUSLISDAUL WBLIDIA

:g107 JOqWSsa LS Pepue Jeak auy) 10 $50] 0 J0Id JO SJUBLUSIE}S PaSUBLULING

(panunuoo) SLLIINT GINMO-ATIMYd TVIHILVIN ‘9

papus uay} JEoA 8y} 10} pue §LOZ J2qwianag ¢ e se

(panuguos) SANIWILYLS TYIONYNIH Q3LVAITOSNOD 3HL O4 S3LON

Auediior) %001S JUIOF SDWOYUIA



08
666961 1i6'6¥ B2V'29Z PZ6'S00°1 BrL'GTL L £01'220'C s)sasejul Bullosuoo-UON
£5Z°1LP'0L 0ZL'vze'Sh ¥E6'PLLEL 9Ze'680C LO0'SHS'L 02E'sTrY juased ayl Jo ssapjoy Anb3
-0} SgRINGUIY
Z52°809'91 LEQ'VLE Sy ELY 28024 051'660°¢ 918'029° £L0'8FY'9 Ainba o)
(867 1LZ'E) - - - {9g1's) (952109} SHORY JUDLIND-LON
(¢21'609'L 1) (g8g8'5.8) (18€'2L4) (Qiv'2it) (506°651) (628'8vL') SofjIge) JuauNg
g959'6¥9'2E ¥G4'6E0Q°EE 122'6LC geL'gbl'e 694228 £/5'680'0 SJeSSE JUBLND-UON
¥O0'6E2'3) 0oL'0LL'EE eLG'GLE 2L L¥'peL 2L8'E62'E S60'60L'Y S]9SSE Jualny
oTwe e 28 o9 uey T INIA 211 24A o8 Ao seloy DS JUBUSBAU|
eleflog efeliog EIBLIDIA
O ONA ..Aucmt:nu
QLOZ Jsquesa] 1§ 18 se UonISod [BIouUBLL JO SIUBWS]R]S PasLELLLING
6682'262'C QC9'6PS Giz'esr'l igL'558° L 5990121 AN sisasajur Bugtosueo-uoN
GZ0'68Z L2 886'€OV' Py POO'LEL LY 1BL'Gv6'1 £19°199'L gLL'8¥L'e juased ay) Jo siapioy Anb3
0} AgeInauly
62 1¥G'6Z t+Z9'CLLSY 61L8€19'¢1 ¥4£'002°¢ 822°7.8'C SIv'Lep's Ainba jeg01
{18¥'vEt" L) - 022'87) - (se1°) {oen'coR) SOIY|IQE! JUBLIND-UON
{e¥0'801'05) {1e2'6¢£) {0eg'es) (s61°'841) (SpLeot) {r19'ga5'e) sanpqel sung
9.1'€56' L2 o085'CL6'G1 oBP Lo L1 0881614 Ovl'era'T 15£'96L°G 539558 JUDLNO-LION
gvlL'18L'cg 69.'8L¥'62 £26'v¥88 160'92Z'Z git'26¢ G12'9G5°E slasse LNy
277 we B9 D8I o9 ue) T LNA D11 0dA eheliag oS Ao tedoy DSt JIBWISEAU|
elelisg WERLEDIA,

uoig (NA Aouauns

BL07 Joquiasa() | £ 12 S8 uonisod [ IDURUY JO SJUAWSIELS PaSUBWLILNG

{panunuoo) s31LILNT GANMO-ATLYVd TVIMZLVIN

papUS UBL) JBaA DY) 40§ pUE G107 Jaquiada(] Lt e se
{panuguoo) SINIWILYLS TYIONVYNID GILVUITOSNCOD 3HL QL S910N

Auediion) o01S JUIOP SBWOYUIA



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

The Company and its subsidiaries presented the foliowing disaggregated revenue information

based on type of goods or service to comply with the requirement of IFRS 15:

2019 2018
VND miifion VND mitlion
Sale of inventory properties 48 865131 37,085,327
Rendering general contractor, construction
consultancy and supervision services 2,657,041 3,889,230
Rendering real estate management and
related services 1,483,024 960,728
Retail outlets - 8,155
Other revenue 160,216 123,951
Total 53,165,412 42,067,392

In 2019, revenue from one customer amounted to VND18,403 billion (2018: nil) arising from

the transfer of a portion of the Company and its subsidiaries’ real estate projects.

Contract balances
2019
VYND million
Trade receivables from contracts with
customers (%) 6,793,242
Receivables from related parties 3,285,805

2018
VND million

4,414,815
3,089,568

Trade receivables are mainly from the transfer of portions of Vinhomes Ocean Park and
Vinhomes Smart City projects; landed house at Vinhomes Marina project and residential
apartments at Vinhomes Green Bay, Vinhomes Metropolis, Vinhomes Goiden River and

Vinhomes Central Park projects.

{(*} This balance includes contract assets amounting to VND5,786 billion and VND3,596
billion, as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively. Contract assets are
initially recognised for the portion of revenue earned from the sale of inventory properties.
The receipt of contract assets is conditional on the transfer of land use right certificate to
the customer. Tha significant increase in the contract assets in 2018 mainly resulted from
transfer of portions of Vinhomes Ocean Park and Vinhomes Smart City projects.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7.1

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES
{continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued}

Confract balances {continued)

2018 2018
VND miflion VND miltion
Contract liabilities
Down payments from customers for purchases of
residential and investment properties (Note 27) 75,505,897 18,652,255
Deferred revenue (Note 29)
Current porfion 439,862 423,488
Non-current portion 1,286,692 1,460,577
- 634,862

Short-term payables to related parties

Contract liabilities represent down payments from customers for purchases real estate
properties and advance payment for services to be rendered in the future related to real estate
management services.

Down payments from customers increased significantly in 2019 due to receipt of additional
down payments for recently launched projects, e.g. Vinhomes Ocean Park, Vinhormes Grand
Park, Vinhomes Smart City, Vinhomes West Point projects.

Revenue recognized in 2019 and 2018 from these contract iabilities at beginning of the year
amounted to approximately VND9,882 billion and YND17,484 hillion respectively.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7.1

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Performance obligation

information about the Company and its subsidiaries’ performance obligations are summarised

below:

Performance Cbligation

When Performance
Obligation is Typically
Satisfied

Significant Payment
Terms

Safe of Inventory Property (%)
Inventory property

Rendering general contractor,
construction consultancy and
supervision services
Generatl contractor,
construction consultancy
and supervision services

Rendering real estate
management and related
services
Real estate management
services

Related services

(*) There is a significant financing component for the contracts,

Hand-over of property (o
the customer {point in time)

As work is performed {over
time)

As work is performed (over
time)

As work is perfermed (over
time)

83

tn accordance with payment
schedule regulated in the
contract,

In accordance with payment
schedule regulated in the
contract.

in accordance with payment
schedule regulated in the
contract.

At the end of the contract
period.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NCOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7.1

7.2

7.3

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The total transaction ptice allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 excluding the constrained variable
considerations are approximately VNDS1,473 billion (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
VND38, 835 billion), in which:

(i) The total transaction price aliocated to the remaining performance obligation of sale of
inventory property as at 31 December 2019 are approximately VND87,856 billion (as at
31 December 2018; approximately VND29,397 billion). The performance chligation is
satisfied upon the handover of inventory property to customers within from 1 1o 3 years
as at 31 December 2019;

(i) The total transaction price aliocated to the remaining perfarmance obfigation of rendering
construction services as at 31 December 2019 are approximately VND1,779 billion (as at
31 December 2018: approximately VNDS,552 billion). The performance obligation is
satisfied within from 1 to 3 years as at 31 December 2019; and

(i} The total transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation for rendering
real estate management services as at 31 December 2019 are approximately VND1,738
billion (as at 31 December 2018: approximately VND1,886 billion). The performance
obligation is satisfied within from 1 to 10 years as at 31 December 2019

Cost of sailes and services

2018 2018

VND mitlion VND miflion
Cost of inventory properties 22,217 157 27,534,840
Cost of rendering general contractor,
construction consuitancy and supervision
services 2,546,428 3,640,864
Cost of rendering real estate management
and related services 1,481,356 954,904
Cost of leasing of investment property and
rendering of retated services 381,815 572,447
Cost of goods sold at retail outlets - 12,758
Others 95,564 69,357
Total 26,702,020 32,785,171
Other operating income

2019 2018

VND million VND milfion
Gain from disposal of investments (i) 1,492,806 3,556,975
Changes in fair value of financial assets
through profit or toss (Note 32} 4,914,251 9,180,193
Gain from compensation/penalties 77.801 32,476
Gain from disposat of property and equipment,
and investment properties 86,641 164
Others 54614 68,292
Total 6,636,113 12,838,100

(i) Gain during the year ended 31 December 2019 is from the transfer of shares in Prime

Lang JSC.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (centinued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the ysar then ended

7.4

7.5

7.6

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES

{continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

Commission fees

Advertising, marketing expenses
Wages and salaries

Rental expenses of retail outlets

Others
Total

Administrative expenses

External service expenses
{Reversal)/Provision made of impairment ioss
on financial assets

Wages and salaries

Sponsorship and donation

Impairment

Depreciation expenseas

Others

Total

Other operating expenses

Contract penalties
Loss from dispesal of investments

Others
Total
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2019 2018

VNLD million VND million
1,083,070 1,080,365
801,329 73,935
135,745 93,673
53,053 63,565
20,910 89 651
2,064,107 4,361,189
2019 2018

VND millicn VND million
761,329 §78,804
{166,148} 239,368
244 610 130,088
502 545 157,880
38,840 101,431
21,198 22.321
410,137 61,489
1,902,511 1,291,402
2018 2018

VND million VYND million
143,830 107,622

- 32,137

11,678 6,830
155,506 146,589




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7.7

7.8

7.9

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES

(continued)

Finance income

Nominal interest income on term deposits and
loans

Changes in amortised cost of
loansireceivabies/borrowings other than
nominal interest

Other finance income

Total

Finance costs

Nominal interest on debts, borrowings and
interest-bearing deposits

Changes in amortised costs of loans/deposits
and borrowings other than nominat interest
Interest on lease liabilities

Other finance costs

Total

Employee benefit expenses

Included in cost of sales:
Wages and salaries
Sacial security costs

Included in selling and distribution expenses

(Note 7.4)
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Included in adminisirative expenses
(Note 7.5)
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Total
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2019 2018

VND mitlion VND mifiion
2,376,941 1,541,300
154,110 168,555
899 2,608
2,531,950 1,712,463
2018 2018

VND million VYND miflion
2,377,698 2,382622
159,113 81,364
102,128 -
171,128 6,051
2,900,068 2,470,037
2018 2018

VND million VND million
812,030 £38,5746
53,088 27,856
122,514 90,377
13,231 3,298
223,302 124,666
21,308 5,433
1,245474 781,207




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7.10

8.1

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES
(continued)

Depreciation, amortisation and costs of inventories included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss

2018
2019 (Restated)
VND miliion VND million
Included in administrative expenses
(Noie 7.5)
Depreciation and amortisation 21,198 22,321
Included in cost of sales:
Depreciation and amaortisation 357 443 237272
Warranty provisions (19,267) 38,103
Cost of inventory properties {(Note 16} 21,410,885 27,534,840

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The statutory corporate income tax (“CIT*) rate applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2018 is 20% on taxable profit (previous year: 20%).

The tax returns filed by the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to examination by the
tax authorities. As the application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying
interpretations, the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be
changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax autherities.

Corporate income tax expenses

The major components of corporate income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss are:

2019 2018

VND miltion VND miflion
Income taxes
Current tax expenses 5,766,161 . 4,830,061
Deferred tax (income)/expense ralating to
origination and reversal of temporary
differences {773,655) 203,673
Income tax expense recognised in
consolidated statements of profit or loss 4,992,506 4,833,734

&7



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

8. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)

8.1 Corporate income tax expenses {continued)

The current CIT payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. The taxable profit
differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The Company and its subsidiaries’ Hability
for current tax is caleulated using tax rates that have been enacted by the financial reporting

date.

The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the Company and its
subsidiaries' tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is as

below:

Accounting profit before tax

At CIT rates applied to the Company and its

subsidiaries
Adjustments to accounting profit:

impacts from equity transactions between
entities in the Company and its subsidiaries
and entities outside the Company and its

subsidiaries

Differences arising from revaluation of net
asset of subsidiaries as at acquisition date

Non-deductible expenses

Differences of cost of goods sold between the
individual financial statements and the

consolidated financial statements
Losses of subsidiaries

Difference from recording outright sale

transaction

Share in {profit)/loss from associates

Losses ineligible for offsetting against taxable

income

Dividend income and shared profit under
Business and Investment Co-operation

Contracts

Tax losses carried forward
CIT adjustment of subsidiaries
Others

Estimated tax expense charged to the

consolidated statement of profit or ioss

88

2018 2018

YND million VND miltion

29,722,810 18,380,195

5,844,582 3,876,039

(13¢,815) (203,184)

- 601,758

547 462 100,374

{45,829) 418,255

2,238 88,010

- 32,168

- {38)

- 14,138

(1,065,329) -

(265,180} (118,667)

- 26,367

4,387 518
4,992,506

4,833,734




NSNS A
68
(1v5°218) {ivz'301) 18U ‘SapliqeI| X¥ pRLI3LR]
{0si'zpe’s) (€05'059) setjjiqer e} pasieye(
£09'v2Y 95Z'v¥5 512552 XE} paLajaQ)
SMOJJO} S8 UOIIS0d [RIOUBLI JO HHBLISIE]S PAEPIOSUCD BLf Ui PAOSloY
(€29°c02) $59°CLL 59
40 Joad jo Juawaze)s pajepiiosuna o) (paliipia)ypaid X8} paLnjah JoN
(osL'zre'l) {£05'058)
195'99 629°06Y {z1£'999) {ev2'512) $80] 10
woid yBnouy) anjea s} 18 S18SSE [eUBUY Bulnseaw wolp Soussayp Aelodwa}
- {pzo'sg) - {1c'vtL) 1osse asn-jo-1ybu jo JuslaInsealL wanbasgns pue uolubooas feliul
(alg's) 000°1 (622'¢5) (1 1e0a) 1500 posipoue
| Swalunisui [eioueul Buisseel ol SecualsyIp Alerodius; ajgexe |
{z80'028) 2£8'25¢ (6¥G'228) (Z1.1'682) sjep
_._Omwmw_—.__uum 12 SAUBIPISANS JO 9SCE Al |0 LORBR[EAD) 1H0)) mnw.wtﬂ saoualagicl
Sarpiget xXey palrajag
£00'vZr asZ'rys
- L0y - 4% a4 wosd pas|esiun woyy Sursue sanuaaig
982'6Z LLLe 982°02 260'82 usumedus oy saualayp Aelodua)
- 006’28 - £91'641 SafIQEl 9SS} JO JUALUAINSEIW JUanbasgns pue uoiubaoa: |eriu)
- oiL's - 0.L0'g gosuadxs aignonpap-uou AEIOCLUB) WD SITURSYG
{rFze'on - gga'2 959°4 10BSU02 UOIONIISUCD 30} Buunooae woyy Bussne soualayp Aewdws |
{Lp0vE) - - - uogoesues aies Buno Suipions: wosy soueiayp Aeodwa)
B.5'66 {10t'88B) g.8'68 i uonsesues) 3ol
1o Jopun SBUEKHSQNS O JOSSE 10U jO UoRenjeaal woy Busue seoualayg
{9p1've} {aLs'y) ayl'yl 08002 ajep
uoRsboe JB sLUEIPISGNS JO 195SE (AU J0 UokeN|EAat woy Buisue ssauaslig
'y (ogz'es) FAR 4 28L'€2 $S0] IPaID poioedeE 10} UoISINDI
209'e8 {ce6'19) 109°cg ZZ9't SLI0JUBAL] BI{OSGO JOf UKISINGI
9¢9'cs (081°22) 9951 8¥E'41 SNUBAR PBID}ON pue ssuadye paniooy
¥aL'e 085's51 2¥8'0L L21'69L 1834 ayy ul asodind xe} Jof uonesyeuded J0f 9GEMOLE Sasuadn
5)1asse X} palisjac]
uopiy QA LR ONA LIIHRY TINA Lo JMA
RiOZ fL0E gi0e 5i0¢
S50} 40 Jijoid uolsod [BIoUBUY JO JUBLSIE)S DOIEDIOSUDD

J0 JUBLLBIRIS DAJEIOSHIOD ay of (abukysigipatly
xe poiiooq T8

{ponunuoo} XYL JWOINI 3LVHOLNO0D g

POPUD LAY JEOA 2] IO} PUR §1.0Z JAquiana(] 1§ 1B Sk
{(penuguos) SINIWILYLS TYIONYNIA GILVAIMOSNOD 3HL OL S310N

Auedwioc 320313 JUIO SDWOYUIA



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

8.2

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net:

Opening balance as of 1 January

Tax expense during the year recognised in profit or
loss

Taxable temporary differences outside profit or loss
arising from measuring financial ingtruments at
FVPL

Taxable temporary difference from measuring
financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Taxable temporary difference arisen on disposal of
financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Taxable temporary differences cutside profit or loss
arising from measuring financial instruments at
amortised cost and provision for expected credit
loss

Deferred tax arising from initial recognition and
subsequent measurement of right-of-use and lease
liabilities

Deferred taxes acquired from business
combinations

Closing balance as of 31 December

Tax loss carried forward

The Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to carry each individual tax losses forward to
offset against taxable profits arising within five years subsequent to the year in which the loss
was incurred. As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries have aggregated
accumulated tax losses of VNDB2.8 billion avallable for offset against future taxable profits

{31 December 2018: VND1,338 billion).

These are estimated tax loss as per the Company and its subsidiaries' corporate income tax
declarations which have not been audited by the local tax authorities as of the date of these
the consolidated financial statements. No deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of
the aforementioned accumulated tax losses because future taxable profit of the Company and

its subsidiaries cannot be ascertained at this stage.

90

2019 2018
VND million VND million
(917,547) (1,130,384)
773,655 (203,673)
- (732,952)

- 189,992

- 975,689

31,917 (30,122)
2,528 -
3,200 14,404
(106,247) (817,547)




Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

9.7

9.2

EARNINGS PER SHARE AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per

share computations:

Profit for the year attributable to eguity
holders of the parernt

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent for basic earnings
Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
Woeighted average number of ordinary
shares for basic earnings per share (*)

Effect of stock dividend {Note 9.2}

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of crdinary
shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (*)

2018 2018

VYND million VND miflion
22 167,023 14 054,695
22,167,023 14,054,595
2019 2018
3,344,526,936 2,102,017 587
- 1,068,802,368
3,344,926,936 3,471,915,955
3,344,926.936 3,171,919,955

{(*) The weighted average number of shares has taken into account the weighted average

effect of changes in treasury shares during the year

Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic, profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity hotders of the parent
Diluted, profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

Dividends per share

Dividend declared during the year
in which.

- Stock dividend

- Cash dividend (i}

Dividends per share

2018
VND
6,627

6627

2019
VND milflion

3,348,514

3,349,514

2018
VND

1,000

2018
VND

4,431

4,431

2018
YIND miition

11,689,024

10,698,024
900,000

2018
VND

3,657

(i} Pursuantto the Resolution No. 01/2018/NQ-DHDCD-VH dated 27 May 2018, the General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company approved the pian on using profit after tax of
2018. Accordingly, the Company will pay cash dividends with ratio of 10% per share
{which is equivalent to VND1,000 per share). On 30 July 2018, the Chairwoman approved
the Decision No. 03/2019/QD-CTHDQT-VH on declaration of cash dividends to the
existing shareholders with aggregate amount of approximately VND3,350 billion from
accumulated retained earnings up to 31 December 2018.

g1

s e 0B

= -

b



4]

852179 988'C LIV'68 662'581 #00'LLE

GEP'00L 68’y /80'¢ ¥66'89 A4} 89.'6

00z'sr £oL'9 LGO'E 86L'GL 08Z'8 v18'LL

{09¢e) {gt) (o81) - (6EL) -

8L¥'62 9eL'e 180'¢ 026'6 162 vigLl

87l '81 200y 008 BL2'8 890'S -

91661 9rZ G99t Bv1°C 96Z°G1 -

v06'CL0 686'8 AL G192 620'V81 8/6'28¢

{ezT') {Lo1) {o06) - (812} -

06y - - - - o6’y

EL0'vT - Gl - 4 218’82

££8'08 - - - £40°1L 092'68

Qgc'giy - - - 68’651 185'862

0St'02 9eg I51'g €08 7982l 5

£85'6L1 yee'g 188 z18'9/ Z6%°02 892'6

LI ONA LioHit GNA UoHIL NA UOKL GINA LOIIL GINA LI GNA

[i2{a]} SO juawdinbe 82ty  uoRepodsuRl} Jsidinba samonys
Jo suBsiy 9 Alsuiyoepy o s6UPHNE

) >, "stiun Bunesauab-ysed asauy Joj $30f Jusutedu) Aue asiubooas Jou pip wiswabeusw
) 9SNEoaq 159) Jusuuedwi pauopad 10U SARY saueipisqns s pue Auedwod a8yl

BLOZ Jequade( LE
2107 Jaguadag Lt

:anfea %o004q JoN

6102 1Bquwsde] LE

pesodsip 'plog
1eak ay) Joj uonenaidag
g10g 9gqueds( Lt

suoneioaidag

pajeraidap Ajng
§10Z Jequiasaq 1¢

pasodsip ‘plog

{91 @10N)

SOIIOILAAUE LU0 I9jSuel ]
SOLBIPISONS JO UomSINDOYY
(L 910N) ssaiboad

L UOIIANASUOD WOy 19jSUB |
(¢4 SION)

uoIINISUCS Japun sajedoid
JUSLLLSIALT WO JBJSHRL )
paseyand imaN

9102 1eguaos( LE

11509

INININD3 GNVY Alyd3d0Ad

‘ol

popUS USY) JBBA BU) J0) pUB L7 JOqUAce( LE 18 se
{penuiuod) SINIAWI VYIS TVIONYNIZ A3LvQINOSNOD JHL O1 STION

Auedwion) JO0}1S JUIoM SBWIOYUIA



£é

10Z2°69.7 009°669 - 209'69
0sL'gee 009°669 - 055°8¢
(zGev'y9g) “ {(Zst'vas) -
209'Z60°L 009'668 FA~ 287 14 06582
80g°‘ey - - IR 2
(668) - - (668)
10€'LZ - - 10812
268'22 - . 86822
{6t'tL) - {S6v'pL) -

£6L'2e - Get'rL 86822
£15'809 009'669 - £16'80L
(8rL’L) - - (6¥L'L}

i - - Ll

c0C'64 - - £0Z'66
8ro'LS. 009°669 - b LS
(L¥6'8.8) - {LP5'8.E) -
G66'6ZL°} 009669 6'8.¢ 8¥P°LS
LI ONA UOIHL ONA uommu GNA LN CINA
fejog {EMPo09 sjubut asn pue] SUIBMPOS JNduron

6102 Jaquiadeg Lg

pajesas se gLoz Aaenuep | Je sy

91 Syt jo uondope jo edui

papodal Aisnoaaad se gLz Aenuer | je sy
1anjeA %004 19N

6102 19qiladag LE

pesodsip 'plog
2ok sy 104 ucHesIHOUlY
paelsal se gLQz Atenuer | 3e sy

9l S Jo uondope Jo eduw|
papodas Ajsnotaaid se gLoz Lienuep § Je sy

:uoIesIHOWY

61.0Z 18quasaQ 1§

pasodsip 'piog
(Z'G sloN) ssuepsgns JO LoSINbOY
paseuand AmaN

pajeisas se gL0Z Asenuer | je sy

91 S 41 Jo uodope jo yoeduj
papodal £jsnotaaid se gLoz Aenuer | je sy

1509

S13SSY FIBIONVLNI

it

papUDd UBY} JEDA DU} IO} PUE §LOZ 19QWa0a( Lg 1B s.
{panuguos) SINIWILVYLS TVIONYNIL QILVAITOSNCO dHL OL SILON

AuedwoD %001S JHO SBWOYUIA



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

11,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill for the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company and its subsidiaries performed its annual impairment test and when
circumstances indicate the carrying vaiue may be impaired. The Company and its subsidiaries
consider the relationship between its market capitalisation and its book value, among other
factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries carried out
impairment test for goodwil! allocated to Vietnam investment JSC.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined by fair value less cost of disposal for
the remaining unsold components of Vinhomes Metropolis project. The fair value
measurement was categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the actual selling price in
contracts signed with customers. As a result of this analysis, management assessed that
there is no impairment loss for this CGU to which goodwill of VNDS39 billion is aliocated.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations

The calculation of value in use for goodwill aliocated to Vietnam Investment JSC is most
sensitive to the following assumptions:

» Discount rate;

»  Apariment and office selling rate,

» Money collection progress of office selling;
= Net selling area of office.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

+ Apartment and office selling rate - Management recognises that the demand for office can
have a significant impact on apartment and office selling rate. A reduction by 0.5% in the
office seiling rate would not result in an impairment loss;

= Discount rate - A rise in the pre-tax discount rate to 14, 5% {i.e., +0.5%} in the impairment
test model would not resudt in impairment;
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Becember 2019 and for the year then ended

12

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Buildings and Machinary and
Land use rights struclures equipment Total
VAD milfion VND mithion VND milfior: VNE million

Cost:
As at 1 January 2019 as
previpusly raported 1,084,873 3,305,897 657,322 5927892
impact of adoption of
IFRS 16 167,154 - - 167,154
As at 1 January 2019 as
rastated 2,131,827 3,305,897 657,322 6,095,046
Newly purchased 37,382 839,764 - 677136
Transfer fram construction
in progress (Note 14) 70,808 364,795 74,695 510,298
Transfer from investment
properties under
construction (Mote 13) - 53,332 51,086 104,388
Transfer from inventories
{Note 16) 8,207 102,362 65628 166,197
Reversaf impairment
losses - 15570 - 18,570
Qther additions 86 19,753 1,272 21,121
Transfer to inveniories
{Note 15) {26,798) {5,098) - {31,386}
Sold, disposed {303,482) (13,940) - (317,422)
impairment losses (%) - [58.410) - {58,4103
Other decreases {(40,673) (4.619) (76.627) {121,819)
31 December 2019 1,877,367 4,423,396 763,356 7,064,119
Depreciation:
1 Januaty 2019 32,478 77435 55,634 165,547
Depreciation for the yesr 47,582 85,375 38,379 171,329
Amartisation of RCU
assels 8,265 “ - §,265
Transfer to inventories
{Note 16) - {218) - {216)
Sold, disposed - {3,754) - {3,754}
31 December 2019 88,325 158,841 94,005 ,17
Net book value:
As at 1 January 2019 as
previously reported 1,832,185 3,228,482 601,688 5,162,245
Impact on agoption of
iFRS 18 172,895 - - 172,895
As at 1 January 2019 as
restated 2,094,349 3,228,482 601,688 5,929,498
As at 31 December 2019 1,789,042 4,264 558 869,351 5,722,948

(*} The Company and its subsidiaries have performed impairment test after reviewing
indicators of impairment and based its impairment calculations on most recent budgets and
forecast calculations of major properties. The recoverabie amount of these properties as at
31 December 2019 has been determined based on a fair value calcufation using cash flow
projections. The prejected cash flows have been updated to reflect the change in demand for
products and services. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is ranging from
11.48% to 15% (2018: 12.5% to 15%) and cash flows beyond the S-year period are
extrapolated using terminal growth rate 5% (2018: 2% to 5%). As a resuit of this analysis, as
at 31 December 2019, management recognised impairment loss of investiment properties
including Shophouse, Apariments for lease in Hanoi, Parking components in Vinhomes
Central Park project with total amount of about VNDSS billion.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Becember 2019 and for the year then ended

12. COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued}

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties mainly represent: office-for-lease component
in Vinhomes Times City Project; office for lease component of Vincom Center Dong Khoi at
No. 72, Le Thanh Ton Street, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, office component
of Vinhomes Symphony Project; parking components in Vinhomes Times City, Vinhomes
Central Park, Vinhomes Green Bay, Vinhomes Golden River, Vinhomes Symphony,
Vinhomes Royal City, Vinhomes Metropolis Projects; Landmark 81 SkyView and villas,
apartiments, shophouses for lease in other projects.

The fair value of investment properties as estimated by external valuers is presented as

below:
2018 2018

VND miflion VIND mififon “—%
Completed investment properties: e
Office for iease component in Vincom Center Dong Khoi 8,683,125 8,366,233 SR
Parking component in Vinhomas Central Park project 2,801,755 2,350,975 &
Parking component in Vinhomes Rayal City project 407 528 413,133 Tt
Parking compeonent in Vinhomes Times City project 775,693 789,203 e
Parking component in Vinhomes Metropolis project 671,495 611,710 RE
Education comporent in Vincom Mega Mail Royat City 599,715 554 648 -
Villas for lease in Vinhomes Riverside project 201,449 543,235
Parking component in Vinhomes Golden River project 488,255 479,325
Parking compeonent in Vinhomes Green Bay 207,237 -
Shophouses for lease in Hanoi 310,277 -
Shophouses for lease in He Chi Minh City 148,192 -
Apartments for leases in Hanoi 129,668 -
Office for lease component in Vinhomes Times City project 703,812 -
Total 16,126,301 14,078,462

The fair value of investment property based on internal appraisals is presented as below:

2019 2018

VND million VND million

Office for lease component in Vinhomes Times Cily project - 575,180
Office for lease component in Symphony project 585,720 -
Skyview component of Vinhomes Cenfrat Park project 173,663 -

The levet at which fair vaiue measurement of these properties is categorised at Leve| 3.

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range as at 31 December 2019
DCF Average gross rental (USD/sgmimth) 20-33.5
Overall annual rental growth 3.98%
Long-term occupancy rate 60% ~ 100%
Biscount rate ©10.73% - 16%
income capitalisation Average net rental (USD/sgm/mth) 1528
Long-term occupancy rate 80% — 90%
Capitalization rate 6.75% ~ 9%
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

12.

13.

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value of the aforementioned investment properties is estimated using the discounted
cash flow method. Accordingly, the fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset's life. This method inveives the projection
of a series of cash flows on a real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a
market-derived discount rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream
associated with the asset.

Revenue and expense refating to investment properties

2018 2018
VND miltion VYIND miflion

Rental income derived from investment

properties 1,113,647 837,694
Direct operating expenses {including repairs

and maintenance) generating rental income

{inciuded in cost of sales) (408,938) (282,809)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION

2018 2018

VND million VND million

Vinhomes Long Beach Can Gio project 12,453,085 12,403,704
Vinhomes Grand Park project 3,988,326 -
Hoc Mon Urban Area project 4,082 285 -
Leman Golf Course and Villa Cu Chi project 1,688 815 1,667,779
Vinhomes Ky Hoa project 1,141,329 1,133,148
Vinhomes Me Linh project - 641,288
Vinhomes Golden River project 295,369 579,332
Vinhomes Lang Van project 548,341 538 421
Vinhomes Ocean Park project 1,978,912 416,685
Vinhomes Smart City project 2,013,618 315,767
Vinhomes Times City project 127274 184,924
Other projects 481,048 247,940
TOTAL 28,808,443 18,119,589

The Company and its subsidiaries have performed impairment test after reviewing indicators
of impairment and based its impairment calculations on most recent budgets and forecast
calculations of major properties. The recoverable amount of these properties as at 31
December 2019 has been determined based on a value in use caleulation using cash flow
projections. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the change in demand for
products and services, The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 13.98% (2018:
12.5% to 15%) and cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using terminal
growth rate 5% (2018: 2% to 5%). As a result of this analysis, management recognise any
impairment loss of VND427 billion for investment properties under construction.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION {continued)

The fair vaiue of investment properties under construction as estimated by external valuers
(comprising office component of Vinhomes Times City project, parking component and
commercial area for lease of Vinhomes West Point project, and parking component of
Vinhomes Qcean Park project) as at 31 December 2019 is VND458 billion.

The fair value of investment properties under construction based on internal appraisais
(comprising parking components at Vinhomes Grand Park and Vinhomes Symphony projects)
is VND174 billion.

The level at which fair value measurement of these properties is categorised at Level 3.

Valuation technigue  Significant unobservable inputs Range as at 31 December 2013

Residual Average gross rental (USD/sgm/mth) 18 - 20
Overall annual rental growth 3.98%
Leng-term occupancy rate 50% — 100%
Discount rate 12.98% —~ 14%

Besides, the fair value of other components cannot be reliably measured since the Company
and its subsidiaries are in progress of obtaining construction permits and approved design
master plan for those properties and also has not signed construction contracts with the
contractors as at reporting date of the financial statements. Carrying value of these properties
as at 31 December 2019 mainly comprise land compensation and site clearance costs,
construction costs and land use fee,

Details of movement of investment properties under construction are as follows:

2018 2018
VND mifiion VND mitlion
Balance at 1 January as previously reported 18,118,939 2,312,989
Adoption of IFRS 16 346,594 -
Balance as at 1.January as restated 18,466,583 2,312,989
Capitai expenditures (i) 2,722 646 802,588
Interest capitatised (ii) 52 457 183,587
Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries {iii} 7,245 771 16,394,238
Increase from acquisition of new projecis 50,683 -
Recognition of right-of-use assets 617,540 -
Decrease from disposal of subsidiaries (641,288) -
Reclassification to property and equipment
{Note 10} (418,386) -
Rectassification to completed investment
properties (Note 12} {104, 398) -
Reclassification from/({te} inventories (iv)
(Note 16) 816,836 (1,673,383)
Balance at 31 December 28,808,443 18,119,989
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION (continued)

(i} This includes:

»  Additions in 2018 are mainly attributable to the construction cost at Vinhomes Ocean
Park project and Vinhomes Times City project, and land compensation and site
clearance cost at Vinhomes Long Beach Can Gio project; and

»  Additions in 2019 are mainly attributable to the construction cost at Vinhomes Qcean
Park project, Vinhomes Smart City project and Vinhomes Grand Park project.

(i) This includes:

= Additions in 2018 are capitalisation of borrowing cost of Vinhomes Ocean Park
project, Vinhomes Smart City project and Vinhomes Long Beach Can Gio project;
and

»  Additions in 2019 are mainly capitalisation of borrowing cost of Vinhomes Grand
Park project and Vinhomes Long Beach Can Gio project.

{(i#) This includes:

e Additions in 2018 are from acquisition of Can Gio JSC, GS Cu Chi JSC, Berjaya
VFC LLC, Millenium LLC, Lang Van JSC, West Hanoi LLC, Metropolis Hanoi LLC
and Berjaya VIUT LLC; and

»  Additions in 2019 are from acquisition of Green City JSC and Delta JSC.

(iv) This includes:

= Decreases in 2018 are from reclassification to inventory properties at Vinhomes
Ocean Park project, and

« Movements in 2010 are reclassification toffrom inventories at Vinhomes Golden
River, Vinhomes Ocean Park and Vinhomes Smart City project.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

14. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

2019 2018
VND miltion VND milifon
Machines for construction of Vinhomes projects - 71112
Floating restaurant component - Vinhomes
Golden River project - 62,826
Clubhouse component - Vinhomes Smart City
project - 40,291
Other projects 20217 32,029
TOTAL 20,217 206,258

Construction in progress comprises capital expenditures, such as construction costs, land
compensation and site clearance costs, capitalised borrowing costs, planning and design fee,
construction overheads and other related costs incurred in connection with the development
of real estate projects owned by the Company and its subsidiaries,

Details of movement of construction in progress are as follows:

2019 2018
VYIND miition VND mitlion
Balance as at 1 January as previously
reported 206,258 15,282
impact of adoption of IFRS 16 {456) -
Balance as at 1 January as restated 205,802 15,282
Capital expenditures 574,331 198,186
Increase from acquisition of new projects 70,808 -
Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries - 83,232
Reciassification to inventories (Note 16) {183,302) -
Change of basic design (40,291) -
Reclassification to property and equipment '
(Note 10) (86,833) (15,227)
Reclassification to completed investment
properties {Note 12) {610,298) (85215)
Balance as at 31 December 20,247 206,258
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

15,

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets:

Long-term bonds (i)

Deposits for investing purpose
Equity securities at FVOC (i)
Long-term deposits for cutlet rentals
Long-term loans to others

Less allowance for credit losses {Note 33}
Subtotal

Non-financial assets:
Long-term deposits (i)
Other long-term deposits

Subtotal
TOTAL
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2019 2018
VND million VND mifiion
214,680 95,680
73,367 73,367
35,723 36723
9,680 17,702
1,000 -
334,450 228,472
(1,646) (1,866)
332,804 224,606
1,032,336 1,032,336
86 1,794
1,032,422 1,034,130
1,365,226 1,258,736
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

18, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

(i} As at 31 December 2019, the balances represent four investments in bonds, details are

as follows:
Ending balance
[szuer {miflion VND)  Maturity date Interest rate
Joint Stock 100,000 28 November Interest rate is equal to the reference

Commercial Bank
for Invesiment
and Development
of Vietnam

Joint Stock
Commercial Bank
for Foreign Trade

2025

50,000 25 November

2026

interest rate plus 1.3% per annum, of
which the reference interest rate is the
average of 12.month interest paid-in-
arrear VND saving rate for individual,
reference from 4 banks {Joint Stock
Commaercial Bank for investment and
Development of Vietnam, Vietnam
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
industry and Trade, Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietham and Vietnam Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Development})

interest rate for the first period is
7.57% per annum, the interest rate
from the following years is equal to the

of Vietnam 12-month interest paid-n-arrear VND
saving rate for individual plus 1% per
annum.

Jaint Stock 49,680 19 December Interest rate is equal to the reference

Commercial Bank
for investment and

2028

interest rate plus 1% per annum, of
which the reference interest rate is the

Development of average of 12-month interest paid-in-
Vietnam arrear VND saving rate for individual.
Vietnam Joint 15,000 20 Qctober interest rate is equal to the reference
Stock Commercial 2026 interest rate plus 1% per annum, of
Bank for Industry which the reference interest rate is the
and Trade average of 12-month interest paid-in-
arrear VND saving rate for individual,
reference from 4 banks (Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam, Vietham
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade, Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam and Vietnam Bank for
Agricutture and Rural Deveiopment)
TOTAL 214,680
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

15.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

(i)

(il

Equity investments in non-listed companies are classified and measured as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCl as at 31 December 2018. The Company
and its subsidiaries elected to classify irrevecably its non-listed equity investments under
this category as it intends to hold these investments for the foreseeable future. Which
inciude the following:

2019 2018

VND mitlion VND mitlion

Xavinco Land JSC 22,223 22,223
Thang L.ong Real Estate JSC 13,500 13,500
TOTAL 35,723 35,723

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries’
equity interests in these entities are as follows:

2019 2018
Xavinco Land JSC 1.00% 1.00%
Thang Long Real Estate JSC 10.00% 10.00%

Balance as at 31 December 2019 represents an unsecured deposit of VND1,032 billion
to a corporate counterparty earning interest rate which is determined by 12-month interest
paid in arrears VND saving rate of Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam, adjusted each 3-month. The deposit and interest wili be used as settlement for
10% of contract value under detailed contracts between the Company and its subsidiaries
and this corparate counterparty.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

16.

INVENTORIES

Inventories mainly include residential properties which are developed for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Revenue from sale of these properties is recognised under the accounting
policy set out in Note 2. Construction costs and other expenditures attributable to such
properties are included in inventory until disposal. All inventories are recognised at lower of

cost and net realisable vaiue,

A summary of movement of inventory is set out below:

As at 1 January

Construction costs incurred to develop
inventory properties

Interest capitalised

Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries
Increase from acquisition of new projects
Increase from construction in progress
(Note 14)

Increase from completed investment
properties (Note 12)

Cost of goods soid (recognised in cost of
sales) (Note 7.10)

Reclassification (toYfrom investment property
under construction {Note 13)
Reclassification to completed investment
properties {(Note 12)

Reclassification to property and equipment
(Note 10)

Other decreases

As at 31 December

2019 2018

VND million VND miflion
34,956,245 17,073,316
29,984,490 18,915,270
648,279 276,415
16,756,189 28,664,608
3,779,895 .
193,302 -
31,680 .
(21,410,895) (27.547,599)
(816,835) 1,673,393
(166,197) (904,983)
(4,504) 5
(1,267 457) (3,194,175)
61,683,792 34,956,245

The classification of inventory balances as at each financial reporting date is as follows:

Inventory property under construction (at cost)
Inventory property under construction {at net
realisable valug)

Trading inventory property {at cost)

Trading inventory property (at net realisable
value} (i)

Completed inventory property (at cost)
Completed inventory property (at net
realisable value} (i)

Others (at cost)

TOTAL

2018 2018

VND miflion VYND miffion
58,644,607 30,973,773
- 2,114,653

528.317 803,101
33,568 133,953
2,223,458 327.413
33,251 -
320,501 603,352
£1,683,792 34,956,245

(i} The carrying value of trading inventory property which are subject to provision for net
realisable value as at 31 December 2019 is VND34.8 billion (31 December 2018: VND138

billion).

(i} The carrying value of completed inventory property which are subject to provision for net
realisable vaiue as at 31 December 2019 is VND41.8 billion.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

17.

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

2018 2018

VND million VNG million

Sales of inventory properties (%) 5,213,265 3,802,743

Receivabies from construction services 394,773 414179

Property management service and related services 118,543 79,453
Receivables from leasing properties and provision

of related service 57 449 19,538

6,794,030 4,415913

Less allowance for credit losses (Note 33) (788) (1,008)

TOTAL 6,793,242 4,414 815

("} Receivables from sale of inventory properties mainly inciude the receivables from the
transfer of landed house at Vinhomes Green Bay project, Vinhomes Central Park project
and Vinhomes Golden River and the transfer of residential apartments at Vinhomes
Green Bay project, Vinhomes Golden River project and Vinhomes Central Park project.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the Company and its subsidiaries have elected to use the
simplified approach for trade receivables from sale of inventory properties to calculate
ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. However, based on the Company and its
subsidiaries’ historical credit loss experience with its customers adjusted with forward-
looking factors, the Company and its subsidiaries’ trade receivables from sale of inventory

properties as at 31 December 2019 were not provided with ECL.

ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Advances to suppliers mainly include advances to suppliers, construction contractors and

consultants of the real estate projects of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

19. SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Financial assets:

Payment and receipt on behalf of counterparties {i)
Interest receivables on term deposits and foans o

others (i)

Guarantee deposits for project development and
contract performance

Deposit for share transfer agreement

Deposit for project transfer agreement

Deposit for a business co-operation contract
Receivables from share transfer

Others

Less allowance for credit losses (Note 33)
Subtotal

Non-financial assets:
Deposit for investment purpose (i)
Sales commission and other selling expenses

related to inventory properties net yet handed over

Advances to employees
Corporate income tax prepayment {iv)
Valued added tax deductible

Guarantee fee prepaid related to inventory properties

not yet handed over
Tax and other receivables from the State

Others
Subtotal
TOTAL

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv}

2019 2018

VIND million VND million
2,711,187 513,155
2,563,413 1,170,823
518,987 86,527
341,475 341,475

R 694,000

- 13,850,000

- 245,949

141,530 260,757
6,276,592 17,262,786
(32,168) {154,238)
8,244,424 17,108,548
5,502,629 ]
1,508,928 833,301
427,550 224,173
357,764 154,122
673,229 119,251
97,788 -
41933 94,494
326,045 25,380
10,025,906 1,450,721
18,270,330 18,559,269

Balance as at 31 Decemnber 2019 mainly pertains to customers’ down payments collected
by a counterparty for various residential projects on behalf of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2019, this balance mainly comprises interest receivables from

secured and unsecured loans and deposits to corporate counterparties.

Mzinly comprises:

» Deposits of VND3,400 billion to counterparties for the purpose of acquiring shares of
a company that owns a real estate project. These deposits are secured by a number

of shares of this company; and

» A deposit of VND2,750 bitlion to a counterparty for the purpose of acquiring shares
of a company that owns a potential project. This deposit is interest-free and secured

by a number of shares of a non-listed company.

Corporate income tax prepayment represents advance payment of corporate income tax
at rate of 1% on the down payment from the customers who enter into agreements to
purchase residentiai properties from the Company and its subsidiaries. Such corporate
income tax will be finalised with the tax authority when revenue is recognised for the
residential properties upon being handed over to the customers.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

20.

21,

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

2018 2018

VND million VYN mitlion

Loans to others (i) 15,828,130 4 504,600

Current portion of iong-term {oans to others 28,324 23,257
Short-term bank deposits and certificate of

deposits (ii) 360,611 1,009,404

16,213,065 5,537,261

Less allowance for credit losses (Note 33) (73,718) (149 088)

TOTAL 16,139,347 5,388,173

() Balances as at 31 December 2019 mainly include:

v Loans to individuals amounting to VND12,001 billion, with terms of 12 months, and
earning an interest rate of 10% to 10.15% per annum. These loans are secured by a

number of listed shares and capital contributions in several companies.

» Loans to corporate counterparties amounting to VND3,770 biltion, with terms of 12
months, and earning interest rate of 9% per annum. These loans are guaranteed by
a number of shares of a listed company within the Group, a number of shares and a

portion of the capital contribution in the borrowers.

(i) Short-term bank deposits in VND as at 31 December 2019 have terms ranging from more
than 3 months to 12 months, earning interests at rates ranging from 5% to 7% per annum
{as at 31 December 2018: from 8.1% to 7.1% per annum).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018

VND million VNE million

Cash on hand 1,288 2,029
Cash at banks 2786,932 2,693,168
Cash equivalenis 10,544,079 820,177
13,332,298 3,515.372

Less allowance for credit losses {Note 33) (4,072} {1,522)
TOTAL 13,328,227 3,513,850
United Siates Dollar 2,622 10,475

Cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018 comprise bank deposits in VND with term ranging
from 1 month to 3 months, earning interests at rates ranging from 3.8% to 5% per annum (as

at 31 December 2018; from 3.9% to 5.5% per annum,).
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

22,

23.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries recognised a change in fair value (net of tax} of VNDO
billion on unquoted equity securities in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

far the year ended 31 December 2019 {2018: VND75 billion).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Number of authorised shares

2018 2018

Ordinary shares of VND10,000 each (issued and
fully paid) 3,349,513,918 3,349,513,918
TOTAL 3,349,513,918 3,349,513,918

Treasury shares

Numbers of shares Amaunt
VND miltion
At 1 January 2019 - -
Acquisition of treasury shares (i) 60,000,000 5,549,929
At 31 December 2049 60,000,000 5,549,929

(i) Pursuant to the Resolution No. 20/2019/NQ-HDQT-VH dated 30 October 2019, Board of
Directors approved the share buyback to keep as treasury stocks. Accordingly, maximum
number of shares to be bought back is 60,000,000 shares, equivalent to 1.79% of charter
capital. On 12 December 2019, the Company completed the share buyback of 60,000,000

shares with the average transaction price of VND92,425 per share.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

24.

LEASES (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into lease agreements with third parties. These
leases generally provide for either (a) fixed monthly rent, or {b) minimum rent or a certain
percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher. The roliforward analysis of lease liabilities
are as follows:

2019
VYND milfion
As at 1 January 2019, as previously reported -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 18 2,049,677
At 1 January 2019, as restated 2,049,677
Additions 136,806
Interest expense 192,128
Lease modification {5655,835)
Payments (767,423)
As at 31 December 2019 1,055,453
I which:
Current 308,805
Non-current 746,848

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 33.

The following are the amount recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss:

2018

VND miltion

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 108,186
interest expense on lease liabilities 192,128
Gains arising from sale and leaseback transactions (182,072)
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 238,242

The Company and its subsidiaries had total cash outflows for leases of VND767 billion in
2018. The non-cash additions 1o right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are VND908 billion
VND137 biltion in 2019 '
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

24,

LEASES (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessor

The Company and its subsidiaries, as lessor, lets out office, retail, mixed-use spaces and
factory under operating lease agreements. All leases include a clause to enable upward
revision of the rental charge after certain lease periods basis according to prevailing market
conditions. The lessee is also required to provide a deposit on the properties.

The future minimum rental receivables under these agreements are as follows:

2013 2018

VND miilion VND mitlion

Less than 1 year 610,672 168,716
From 1 to 5 years 614,070 64,753
More than 5 years 410,299 402 647
TOTAL 1,635,041 633,118

Under the Business Co-operation contract signed in February 2012 between the Company
and its subsidiaries and Thien Huong investment JSC regarding the school operations in
Vinhomes Royal City project, the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to the share of
Thien Huong's revenue, which is equal to 15% of revenue and can be adjusted according {0
the agreement. The duration of the Business Co-operation agreement is from February 2012
{o the end of August 2043. o o
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

7. DEPOSITS AND DOWN PAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS

2019 2018
VYND million VND miltion

Financial liabilities:
Deposit from tenants to be refunded within the next
12 months 225098 322 153
Subtotal 225,098 322,153
Non-financiat liabilities:
Deposits and down payments from customers for
purchases of residentiat and investment properties (i) 74,968,551 18,058,867
Advances from construction management and
consultancy services 312,248 273,235 .
Suhbtotal 75,280,799 19,330,102
TOTAL 75,505,887 19,652,255

(i) These balances mainly include contract fiability from sale and purchase agreements with
customers to purchase apariments, villas and shophouses at Vinhomes QOcean Park,
Vinhomes Grand Park, Vinhomes Smart City, Vinhomes Marina, Vinhomes West Point
and Vinhomes Metropolis projects.

28, ACCRUALS AND WARRANTY PROVISIONS

28.1 Short-term accruals

2018 2018
VND miflion VYND million
Financial liabilities:
Accrual for construction costs 7,085 806 3,707 581
Accrued selling and marketing costs 2,877,990 1,572,444
Acerued loan and bond interests 635,707 486,745
Others 149,849 152,651
Subtotal 11,748,852 5,919,431
Non-financial liabilities:
Provision for uncertain Corporate income Tax 809,534 -
Subtotal 909,534 -
TOTAL 12,658,386 5,919,401

28,2 Long-term accruals

This represents accrued interest expenses incurred from loans from external parties.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

28,

28.3

29,

ACCRUALS AND WARRANTY PROVISIONS (continued)

Warranty provisions

Based on the past experience on the expenses incurred for the repair works for inventory
properties which were sold to the customers but were still under warranty term, the Company
and its subsidiaries recognised warranty provision for expenses which may incur in relation
to apartments, villas and shophouses sold during the years.

Details of movement of warranty provisions during the years are as follows:

2019 2018

VND million VND miltion

As at 1 January 189,387 56,818
Increase from acquisition of subsidiaries - 138,663
Additional provisions made in the year 22,587 41,955
Amounts used during the year (28,128) (44,197)
Unused amounts reversed during the year {41,854) (3,852)
As at 31 December 141,992 189,387

LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM DEFERRED REVENUES
Long-term and short-term deferred revenues of the Company and its subsidiaries mainly

come from contract liability for management services provided to customers who bought
apartments and vilias for the projects heid by the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

30.

3.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

2019 2018
VND milfion VND mifiion
Financial liabilities:
Maintenance fund held on behalf of customers (i) 1,208,885 1,548,085
Receipt from customer on behalf 74,222 567,393
Deposits for disposal of investments (i) 561,000 -
Others 365,230 770,334
Subtotal 2,208,337 2,888,792
Non-financial liabilities:
Value added tax payable 114,901 4412 631
Deposits for disposal of investments (ii) 6,158,885 -
Payables to employees - 777
Others 118,777 9411
Subtotal 6,393,663 422,819
TOTAL 8,603,000 3,309,611

(i) This is the balance of maintenance fund held on behalf of customers which has not been
handed over to Building Management Boards.

(i) These represent amounts received from corporate counterparties for share transfer in
certain companies.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments refated to capital expenditure of on-going real estate projecis and develepment
of potential real estate projects

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into a number of contracts relating to the
development of certain real estate projects. The outstanding commitment on these contracts
as at 31 December 2018 amounts to approximately VND13,161 billion (as at 31 December
2018; VND7,266 billion}.

On 25 June 2019, a subsidiary of the Company has entered into a Project Transfer Agreement
(‘PTA") with counterparties to acquire a real estate project. The total consideration payable
will be determined as the total of land use rights, assets value and other general expenses
directly attributable to this real estate project incurred by counterparties up to the acquisition
date. As at 31 December 2019, the remaining commitment under this agreement amounts {0
VND172.5 billion.

Under a Business Co-operation Contract dated 23 November 2017 between Royat City JSC
and a counterparty, Royal City JSC commits to contribute 100% investment capital for a
potential real estate project in Hanoi. The total estimated capital is VND790 billion, the
remaining commitment of this agreement as at 31 December 2019 is VND782.1 bilfion.

On 25 May 2018, the Company and Can Gio JSC, a subsidiary, have entered into a Capital
Transfer Agreement with a corporate counterparty to acquire 32.5% of Berjaya VFC LLC’s
equity interest. As at 31 December 2019, the commitment under this agreement is VND503.7
billion.

123

AN



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS THROUGH PROFIT OR I.OSS

2018 2018

VND miflion VND million
Non-current assets
Equity instrument measured at fair value
through profit or loss (i) 180,000 .
Total 180,000 -
Current assets
Equity instrument measured at fair value
through profit or loss (i) 342 909 342,808
Short-term deposit to related parties (iii) 9,578,801 16,061,992
Total 8,921,710 16,404,901

(i) tnvestments in 8V Real Estate JSC and SV West Hanoi JSC with total amount of VND180
billion with 4% equity interests in each entity.

(i) Investment in Phat Loc LLC is classified as a financiai asset at FVPL as at 31 December
2019 with an amount of VND343 billion with 51% equity interests in this entity.

(i) Batance as at 31 December 2019 is mainly from deposits to Vingroup JSC pursuant to
Business and investment Co-operation contracts to develop potential real estate projects
{Vinhomes Riverside The Harmony, Vinhomes Imperia Hai Phong, Vinhomes Dragon
Bay, and Vinhomes Star City Thanh Hoa) and a deposit to Central Park LLC, an affiliate
pursuant to a Business and Investment Co-operation contract to develop potential real
estate project (Vinhomes Skylake), Under the contracts, the Company and its subsidiaries
will receive a percentage of the relevant project's profit before tax and profit after tax
through a mechanism of profit sharing on a periodical basis depending on the project's
operating result for each period.

The deposits are considered debt instrument and classified as short-term financial assets
measured at FVPL due to the nature of its contractual cashflows.

The Company and its subsidiaries use the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method in the
calculation of the fair value of the expected future cash flows from the BCCs. The gainin
the fair value of the instruments at initial recognition of VND3,774 billion {net of tax
VND3,01¢ billion) was recognised as an increase of other reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity due to the nature of the refationship between the Company
and Vingroup JSC and Central Park LLC (subsidiary of Vingroup JSC) After initial
recognition, the Company recognised the change in the fair value of the deposits,
including accretion of interest, amounting to VND4,814 billion as part of other operating
income for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Note 7.3). : _ _
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

32,

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Shown below are the movements during the year:

2018 2018

VND million VND miltion

At 1 January 16,061,992 -
BCC initial deposit - 12,735,318
Fair value difference on initial recognition - 3,774,304
Derecognition of deposit . (2,977.897)
Cash receipt {11,397,442) {6,649,926)
Adjustment to fair vaiue {Note 7.3) 4,914,251 9,180,183
At 31 December 9,578,801 16,061,992

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Fair value

A. Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities, other than those presented in the fair
value table in part C below, is reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their
short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest
rates on or near the reporting date, or they are fixed rate instruments that approximate to
market interest rates on the reporting date.

B. Fair vaiue of financial instruments that are carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities by classes that are carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value are as follows:

2018 2018
VND million VND milfion
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at FVPL
{Note 32) (") 9,578,801 16,061,992

(*) Financial assets measured at FVPL: Fair value deposits to corporate counterparties
pursuant to Business and Investment Co-operation contracts whose cash flow forecasts
are estimated (levet 3 fair value). :

125

JRMET &

TH

VELT

N

Ty

AT
Sl RIE
e



e i g Vo Y

LA

(anjen gg) ¢ [9aa)) panjea Buiaq saimjigey [eoueuly
1O 5198SE [EouBUY 2y Jof Buwiewas 5504} Ul JUMSISUDD SBILNIRW UBM SSIIGEN [BIDUBLY PUB SISSSE [BURUY Jejluns 10§ ssjes Buimolioq Jo sueq
Yueq Woy paalap sindut aUg) asn SaUIRISANS Sit pue AuRdWioS 243 'PasOiosIp AILIO 818 SanjeA Hey Udium Joj SIRIRI [RIoueUl] pUR S1asse [BIOUBUY 104

WO ViIY'L LLLBIP L12'pip'L £19'10P'L soed pajeal WOk A(GBAIB0R) LIBIFHOYS
pasojosip

848 SINRA JB} YHYM 10} SIOSSE [BIOURLIL]

S]9SSE [e12Ueul]

vaifit GNA Lo JNA Lo dNA uoii gNA
anjea e junowe builuen anyea Hey wnowe Buliren
gi0c iz

‘SMOJ|0} SE BIe aNeA Jig) JO
uolewixaidde s|qeucseai Jou ate sjunowe Buikuies asoym pue anjea Je} Je PaLIED JOU 2J8 Jey) $955e0 AQ SaNiiqe!| PUE SISSSe jBIOUBLY JO BN[RA 1R 8y |

anjeA ey
0 uojeuxordde 24teUOSEal JOU aie sJunowe BuiAlied asoym pue anjea Jej Je palles Jou ale Jey) SJUSWIRSUS [eraueuy 0o anjea Jie4 "D

(ponuiuoD) anjea aie4

(panunuod) SHLFNGVIT IVIONYNIL ANV S1ISSY TVIONYNIL €L

popua UsY: Jead syl 10} pue BLOT Pques( LE e se
{PanUIUO?) SEINIWILYLS TYIONVYNIS 33 LYAINOSNOD IHL OL S3LON

Auedwion) ¥001S JUIO SBUIOYUIA



Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2018

33

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Vatuation processes

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, the Company and its subsidiaries use its valuation processes to decide its
valuation policies and procedures and analyse changes in fair value measurements from
period to period.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ fair value methodology and the governance over its
models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate safeguards
are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. The responsibility of ongoing measurement
resides with the business divisions. Once submitted, fair value estimates are also reviewed
and challenged by the Management.

The Valuer validates fair value estimates by:

» Benchmarking prices against observable market prices or other independent sources;
+ Re-performing model calculations; and

» Evaluating and validating input parameters.

The Management also challenges the model calibration on at least an annual basis or when
significant events in the relevant markets occur. The Management is responsible for ensuring
that the final reported fair value figures are in compliance with IFRS and proposes adjustments
when needed. When relying on third-party sources {e.g. broker guotes, or other micro or
macro-economic inputs}, the Management is also responsible for,

» Verifying and challenging the approved list of providers; and

» Understanding the valuation methodologies and sources of inputs and verifying their
suitability for {FRS reporting requirements.

Valuation techniques and specific considerations for Level 3 inputs are further explained
below.

Valuation methods and assumption

The following metheds and assumptions were for the estimation of recurring fair value
measurements categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

e Fair value of the deposits for Business and Investment Co-operation contract to develop
potential real estate projects which are financial assets measured at FVPL has been
estimated using DCF model. Such DCF was based on the Company’s estimates of its
share in the pre-tax income and after-tax income of the Projects after considering the
current saleable inventories and progress of construction of the projects, as well as the
budgeted cost fo compiete the Projects and expected selling and administrative costs.
The net cash flows are discounted using a discount rate reflecting the Projects’ risks and
the sale price is determined based on similar properties marketed by the Group.

The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs,
including forecast cash flows, the discount rate. The probabilities of the various estimates
within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of
fair value for these depaosits,
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2019

R

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Valuation methods and assumption (continued)

'

The Company's investments in unquoted shares are classified as financial assets
measured at FVOC! and FVPL. The fair values of investments in unquoted shares of
Thang Long JSC, Xavinco JSC, SV Real Estate JSC and SV West Hanoi JSC have been
estimated using net asset vaiuation (NAV) model. Under NAV model, the valuation
requires management to make assumption about multiple of net asset value with lack of
marketability,

For the other investment (included investment in Phat Loc LLC), the Company had plans
fo sell this investment and, as such, used the expected selling price in the disposal
transaction as the deemed fair value of the investment;

As the difference between fair value and carrying amount is immaterial, the Company
assesses that the carrying value of the investment in unquoted shares reflects the best
estimate of fair value as at 31 December 2019; and

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation

As at 31 December 2019

Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of the Input to
technigue inputs Rate/Amount fair value
Deposit for DCF Pre-tax cost of $%-11% Decrease in the pre-tax cost
business co- method debt of debt would result in
operation increase in fair value (effects
contracts {o Statement of Profit or Loss}

by VND139.5 hillion

WACC 12%-14% increase (decrease) in the
WACC would result in

decrease (increase} in fair

value (effects to Statement of

Profit or Loss) by VND84.7

bitlionf VND37.6 billion

Selling price  20% increase  20% increase (decrease) in
(decrsase) in selling price would result in

forecasted increase (decrease) in fair

selling price value (effects to Statement of

Profit or Loss) by VND1,520

bittion

Unquoted Net asset Muitipte 0.23 - 1.22 increase (decrease) in the net
equity valuation Price/Book asset value would result in
securities model value of increase {decrease) in fair
Equity value {(effects to Other

comprehensive income) by
VND47 billion/VND167 billion

DCF WACC 13%-15% Increase (decrease) in the
method WACC would result in
increase (decrease) in fair

vaiue (effects to Other

comprehensive income) by

VND2.3 billion/VND3.2 billion
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

33,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {continued)
Description of significant unobservablie inputs to valuation (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial fiabilities comprise payables to related parties,
loans and borrowings, accruals, corporate bonds, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company and its subsidiaries’ operations.
The Company and its subsidiaries also have various financial assets such as trade and other
receivables, loans, equity investments, cash and short-term deposits, which arise from its
normal operations.

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to market risk, credit risk and Hquidity risk.
The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarised below.

Markef risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risks include payables to rejated parties, loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables, trade receivables and term deposits.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections related to the position as at 31 Pecember
2019 and 31 December 2018.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the

ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and the propertion of financial instruments In
foreign currencies are all constant,
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
as at 31 December 201¢ and for the year then ended

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)
interest rate Hsk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company and its subsidiaries
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company and
its subsidiaries' debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company and its subsidiaries
manage its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variabie rate loans
and borrowings. Mast iending of the Company and its subsidiaries have fixed interest rates
and therefore, the impact of changes in interest rate on profit before tax is insignificant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates expected over the following financial year. With all other variables held constant, the
Company and its subsidiaries’ profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings as foliows.

Increase/(decrease) in Effect on profit
basis poins before tax
VND million
2019
VND 40 (35,337)
VND (40} 35,337
2018
VND 25 (16,269)
VND (25) 16,269

The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the
currentty observable market environment.

Equity price risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising
from uncertainty about future values of the investment securities. The Company and its
subsidiaries manage equity price risk by placing a limit on equity investments. The Company
and its subsidiaries' Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.
The sensitivity analysis of equity price risk is presented in the description of significant
unobservable inputs to vahiation section above.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or a customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company and its
subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and
lending to related parties.

Counterparty credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company and its
subsidiaries’ established policy, procedures and contro} relating to counterparty credit risk
management. Credit quality of a counterparty is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding counterparty receivables and contract assets are regularly monitored and any
shipments to major counterparties are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of
cradit insurance obtained from reputable banks and other financial institutions.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class
of financial assets as disclosed in the following notes:

Trade receivables from sale of inventory properties and construction services (Note 17}

Customer credit risk is managed when the Company and its subsidiaries generally require the
customers to make deposits for leasing of office, retail areas and for construction services.
The Company and its subsidiaries manage this credit risk by regularly menitoring the
collection progress from these customers and assesses if there is any impairment on the
outstanding balance, which as at 31 December 2019 is VND(.8 billion (31 December 2018
VND1.1 billion).

Other receivables {Nole 18)

Other credit risk aiso arises fram receivables from corporate customers and individuals. The
Company and its subsidiaries manage this credit risk by regularly monitoring the collection
progress from these customers and assesses if there is any impairment on the outstanding
balance, which as at 31 December 2019 is VND32.2 billion (31 December 2018: VND 154
billion).

Short-term investments to others (Nofe 20)

Customer credit risk also arises from the loans provided to other counterparties (Note 20).
Certain foans are not secured or secured by the unquoted securities. The Company and its
subsidiaries manage this credit risk by regularly monitoring the collection progress from these
counterparties and assesses if there is any impairment on the outstanding balance, which as
at 31 December 2013 is VND72.5 billion (31 December 2018 VND 140 biltion).
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {continued)
Credit risk {continued)
Depasits with banks and financial institutions (Note 20)

Credit risk from deposits with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Caompany
and its subsidiaties’ treasury in accordance with the Company and its subsidiaries’ policy,
which is to place deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions and assesses if there
is any impairment on the outstanding balance, which as at 31 December 2018 is VND1.1
billior {31 December 2018: VNDB8 Billion).

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)

Credit risk from cash and cash equivalents is managed by the Company and its subsidiaries’
treasury in accordance with the Company and its subsidiaries’ policy, which is to place cash
and cash equivalent with reputable banks and financial institutions and assesses If there is
any impairment on the outstanding balance, which as at 31 December 2018 is VND4 bitlion
{31 December 2018: VND1.5 Billion).

Long term receivables with refated parties (Note 34)

Other credit risk also arises from receivables to related parties. The Company and its
subsidiaries manage this credit risk by regularty monitoring the collection progress from these
counter parties and assesses if there is any impairment on the outstanding balance, which as
at 31 December 2019 is VNDO billion (31 December 2018: VND10 billion).

Short term receivables with related parties (Note 34)
Other credit risk also arises from receivables to related pariies. The Company and its
subsidiaries manage this credit risk by regularly monitoring the collection progress from these

counter parties and assesses if there is any impairment on the outstanding balance, which as
at 31 December 2019 is VND64.4 billion (31 December 2018: VND84.5 billion).
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Allowance for credit losses

The loss aliowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described
below:

= Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognized during the period, as well
as releases for financial instruments derecognized in the period;

s Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, LGDs and EADs in the period,
arising from reguiar refreshing of inputs to models;

» |mpacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to modeis and assumptions;
and

» Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-offs of allowances related to
assets that were written off during the peried.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and
the end of the annual period due to these factors:

Other non-current assels (Note 15)
Currency: VND million

2019

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Lifetime
— Purchased ECL
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime credit- Simplified

ECL ECL ECL impalred Approach Total

Balance at beginning of
year 1,866 - - - - 1,866

Movements with profit or loss impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 to

Stage 2 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 1 1o

Stage 3 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 2 fo

Stage 1? - - - - - -
New finantial assets

originated or purchased 983 - - - - 083
Changes in

PDs/LGDs/EADS {1,203) - - - - {1,203)
Changes in made!

assumptions and

methodologies - - - - - -
Financial assets

derecognized dusing the

year ~ - - - = -

Balance at end of year 1,648 - - - - 1,646
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended

33. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Alfowance for credit josses

Short-term prepayment and other receivables (Note 19}
Currency: VND million

2019

Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 Lifetime
1z Lifati Lifet Purchased ECL
-month ifetime me credit-  Simplified

ECL ECL ECL Impaired Approach Total

Balance at beginning of
year: 125,533

Movements with profit or loss Impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 fo
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Transfers from Sfage 1 lo

Stage 3 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stags 2 fo

Stage 1 - - - - - -
New financial asseis

eriginated or purchased 3,214 - - -
Changes in

PDs/A.GDs/EADs (221) - - -
Changes in model

assumptions and

methodologies - - - - - -
Financizl assets

derecognized during the

year (125,063) - - -

28,706 - 154,238

3.214

{221} "‘\’

(125,063)

1
¥

Balance at end of year 3,463 28,705 - 32,168
Short-term investments (Nole 20}

Currency. VND millian

2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Lifatime
2 9 - g Purchased ECL
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit-  Simplified

ECL ECL. ECL impaired Approach Totat

Batance at beginning of
year, 79,088

Movements with profit or loss Impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 to
Stage 2

Transfers from Stage T to
Stage 3

Transfers from Stage 2 lo
Stage 1

New financial assets » -

originated or purchased 1135 1,135
EOer aDeEADS (87.307) - - } - (61S0n
Changes in model

assumptions and

methadologies - -~ - - - -
Financial assets

derecognized during the

year {8,998} - - - = {8,998}

70,000 - = 73,718

70,000 - - 149,088

Balance at end of year 3,718
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

33,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Aliowance for credit fosses
Trade receivables from sale of inventory properties and construction services (Note 17)

Currency. VND miflion

2019

Staget  Stage2  Stage 3 Lifetime

Purchased ECL
1Z2-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- Simpiified

ECL ECL ECL impaired Approach Total

Balance at beginning of
year: - - - - 1,098 1,088

Movements with profit or loss impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 to

Stage 2 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 1 {o

Stage 3 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 2 to

Sfage ? - - - - - -
New financial assels

originated or purchased - - - - - -
Changes in

PDs/LGDs/EADs - - - - {310) (310)
Changes in modet

assumptions and

methodotogies - - - - - -
Financial assets

derecognized during the

year - - - - - -

Balance at end of year - - - - 788 788

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)
Currency: VND million

2018

Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Lifetime
i - g'e - g Purchased ECL
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime credit-  Simpilified

ECL ECL ECL impaired Approach Totai

Balance at beginning of
year, 1,522 - - - - 1,522

Movements with profit or loss Impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 to

Stage 2 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 110

Stage 3 - - - - - -
Transfers from Stage 2 to

Stage 1 - - - - - -
Mew financial assets

originated or purchased 4,033 - - - - 4,033
Changes in

PDs/LGDs/EADS (386) - - - - (36)
Changes in model

assumpiicns and

methedologies - - - - - -
Financial assets

derecognized during the

yaar {1,447) - - ~ - (1,447)

Balance at end of year 4072 - - - - 4072
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

33.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Allowance for credit lossas

Amount due from related parties (Note 34)

2019

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

12-month

ECL

Lifetime
ECL

Lifetime
ECL

Furchased
credit-
impaired

Lifetime
ECL
Simplified
Approach

Total

Balance at beginning of
year:

74,592

Movements with profit or loss Impact

Transfers

Transfers from Stage 1 io
Stage 2

Transfers from Stage 1 1o
Staga 3

Transters from Stage 2 {0
Slage 1

New financial assets
originated or putchased
Changes in
PDe/LGDs/EADS
Changes in model
assumptions and
methodologies

Financial assets
derecognized during the
years

43,789

(5,918}

(48,038)

743

{743)

78,338

43,789
{5,918)

{48,781}

Balance at end of year

64,428

64,426
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2019

33

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {continued)
Capital management

For the purpose of the Company and its subsidiaries’ capital management, capital includes
issued capital, preference shares, share premium and alf other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company and its subsidiaries’
capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support
their business and maximise shareholder vaiue.

The Company and its subsidiarias manage their capital structure and make adjustments to it,
in fight of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company and its subsidiaries may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders. The
Company and its subsidiaries monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. The Company and its subsidiaries include within net debt,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, less cash, cash eguivalents and short-term deposits
at banks and financial institutions.

2019 2018

VND million VND miflion

interest-bearing loans and borrowings 25,648,086 23,954 154
Less cash, cash equivalents and short-term

depesits at banks and financial institutions (13,692,910} (4,524,778)

Net debt 14,855,176 19,429,378

Equity 58,550,325 45,378,786

Tota! capital 58,550,325 45 378,786

Capital and net debt 70,405,501 64,808,164

Gearing ratic 17% 30%
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Significant transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as follows:
Currency: VND million

Related Relationship Transactions Current year Previous year
parties
Vingroup Parent Deposit under project development 22,790,474 15,760,946
J&C company agreements, project transfer

agreements and share transfer

agreaments

Coltection of deposit under project {13,272,604) -

development agreements, project
transfer agreaments and share transfer

agreements

Collection of contribution to Business (7.825,000) -
and Investment Co-operation Contracts

Contribution for Businass and 280,000 -
investment Co-cperation Contract

Receivables from down payments from 6,038,847 -
customers under sales and purchase

agreements

Collection of down payments from {5,950,000) -
customers under sales and purchase

agreements

Receivables from shared profit from 3,014,466 6,626,813
Business and Investment Co-operation

Contracts

Coliection of shared profit from (3,302,430  {5,331,882)
Business and Investment Co-operation

Contracts

Project transfer payables (3,147,470) -
Project transfer paid 918,020 -
Net off deposit under share transfer 2,228,450 -
agreements with project transfer

payables

Management services payables (675,356) {194 578)
Maznagement services paid 389,797 159,844
Repayment of borrowings 54606 25458029
Borrowings - (23,860,000)
Payables for coliection on behalf (38,654) (623,738)
refated to sale of properties

Repayment for coliection on behaif 5321 1,800,760
related to sale of properties

Receivables from cash centralised 15779 85,940,871
account

Regeipt from cash centraiised account (15,786) (66,017,770)
Dividend payables (2,333,164) (11,545,124)
Dividend paid in cash 2,333,164 890,100
Dividend paid in shares - 10,655,024
Receivables from share transfer - 883,000
Receipt from share transfer - {10,515,252)
Receipt from share issuance - {8,500,000)
Dacrease in share capital due to - 1,568,885
demerger

Payables for share transfer - {4,814,154)
Payment for share transfer - 4,814,154
Lending - 1,238,891
Collection of lending - {1,238,881)
Interest payables {(107) (377,397)
Payment for management fees and - 502,875

brand name Royaity fee
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Significant transactions with refated parties for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as foliows: (continued)

Refated parties

Xavinco Land
JSC ("Xavinco
JEC")

Xalivico LLC

Central Park
Development
LLC ("Central
Park LL.C")

Vietnam Grand

Prix LLC
(“Grand Prix
LLC")

Vinschool One

Member LLC

(“Vinschoo! LLC")

inmec
International

General Hospital

JSC (*Vinmee
JSCH

Vincommerce
General
Commercial
Services JSC

(*Vincommerce

3SC")

Relationship

Affitiate

Affiliate

Affiliate

Affitiate

Affiliate

Afiiliate

Affiliate (until
30 December
2018}

Transaclions

Repayment of
borrowings
Borrowings

Borrowings
Repayment of
borrowings

Receivables from
shared profit from
Business and
Investment Co-
operation Contracts
Repayment of
borrowings
Borrowings

Lending

Coflection of lending
Capital contribution for
Business and
Investment Co-
operation Contract

Repayment of
borrowings
Borrowings

Coliection of disposals
of assets

Receivables from
disposal of assels
Repayment of
borrowings

Receivables from share
trensfer

Lending

Collection of lending
Borrowings
Repayment of
botrowings
Payables for share
transfer

Payment for share
transfer

Payables for goods
purchased
Payment for goods
purchased
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Currency: VND million

Current year

258,500

(184,000)
8,500

1,810,168

1,435,000
{290,000)

800,000
(145,000)

808,000

1,000,000
(1,000,000}

(121,381)

108,548

Previous year
966,000
{840,000)

{840,000)
966,000

1,775,000

(1,050,000)

480,000

(940,000}

(914,441)
914 441

735,000

894,000

14,550,000
(15,060,000)
(3,560,000)
3,560,000
{3,000,000)
3,000,000
(2,102,622)

2,516,664
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Significant transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 Pecember 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as follows: (continued)

Related parties Relfationship  Transactions

Vinfast Affiliate

Producing and

Trading LLC

{("Vinfast LLC")

Vinpearl JSC  Affiliate

Phu Quec Parent's

Tourism associate

Davelopment

and investment

JSC (“Phu Quoc

Tourism JSC™)

Kind Heart Under

Foundation common
owner

Vincom Retail  Affiliste
JEC

VinAcademy Affiliate
Education and

Training LLC
{"'VinAcademy

LLCY

Vinsmanrt Affiliate
Research and
Manufacture

JSC {"Vinsmart

JSC)

Lending

Coltection of lending
Repayment of borrowings
Borrowings

Payment for interest
Interest payables

Lending

Coliection of lending
Deposit received for
Investment Co-operation
contract

Receivables from general
contraclor services
Repayment of borrowings
Borrowings

Refund of deposit for
general contractor services
Receipt of denosit for the
general contractor services

Payables for charitable
purpose

Payment for charitable
purpose

Receipt of advances
amount for charitable
purpose

Deposit for Investment Co-
operation Contract
Receivables from general
contractor services and
consulting construction
services

Deposit for construction
investment activities
Receivables from sales of
inventory property
Receipt of sales of
inventory property

Lending

Southern Star  Affiliate (untit Repayment of borrowings

J8C 20 March
2019)
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Cumency: VND million

Current year
19,250,000

(17,600,000}
3,240,000

179,755
(10,184)

9,127,900
(5,170,000}

711,961

1,745,000

(500,000}
100,000

(978,315)
904,523

2,780,000
760,000

(684,000)

2,255 000

Frevious year

25,005,000
(27,164,000}

(401,789)

(2,199,807)

1,564,845

7,875,000
{(9,620,000)

1,961,800
(1,961,800}

(100,000}

92,449

(1,818,1686)

2,830,333

510,000
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties during the years are as follows:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its subsidiaries provided
unsecured loans to related parties at interest rates at 9% per annum (2018: 8% per annum),
and received unsecured loans from related parties at interest rates from 8% perannum to 9%
per annum {2018 8% per annum to 9% per annum).

The Company and its subsidiaries have sold/purchased goods and rendering/purchased
services to/from related parties based on negotiated market prices and contract terms.

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into Business and Investment Co-operation
Contracts with Vingroup JSC, parent company, and Central Park LLC, an affiliate, for the
purpose of developing real estate projects. Accordingly, the Company and its subsidiaries will
receive a portion of profit from these contracts.

Payables and receivables {(except for some lending, borrowings and deposits for share tra nsfer)
as at 31 December 2019 are unsecured, free of interest and will be settied in cash. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries have not made provision for
doubtful debts relating to amounts due from related parties (31 December 2018: nil). This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through the examination of the financiat position
of the refated parties and the market in which the related parties operate.

Amounts due from and due to related parties:

Currency: VND milfion

2019 2018
Amounts due from related parties
Shori-term joans, advances to and receivabies from
related parties 13,573,471 7,837,424
Long-term deposits to and receivables from related
parties 16,302,031 621,114
Amounts due to related parties
Short-term borrowings, deposits from and payables to
related parties 1,552,069 3,184,885
Long-term deferred revenue and payables to related
parties - 966,468 7,029,618
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Details of amounts due from and due to related parties as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as below:

Currency: VND million

Related Ending Beginning
parties Relationship Transactions bafance  balance

Short+term loans, advances to and receivables from related parties

Financial assets:
Vingroup JSC  Parent Deposits for project development (*) 741,000 4,167 499
company Receivables from general contractor 153,576 111,846
services and consulting construction
services
Cther receivables 300,206 9,956
Vinschool LLC Affiliate Receivables from revenue sharing from 12,597 9,362
education activity and related service
Receivable from construction contract 682777 840,042
Vinmec JSC  Affiliate Receivable from construction contract 718,836 579,076
Other receivables 7,652 2.644
VinAcademy  Affiliate Deposit for construction investment 2,780,000 -
LELC purpose
Receivables from sale of inventory 76,000 -
properties
Other receivables 1,212 -
Receivables from payment on behalf 41,781 -
Central Parkk  Affiliate Lending 655,000 .
LLG Other receivables 18,714 250
Vinpear JSC  Affiliate Reaceivables from general contractor 76,899 -
services
Other receivabies 40,560 -
Kind Heart Under Receivables from general contractor 33,902 -
Foundation common services
owner
Vincom Retait  Affiliate Receivables from general contractor 1,719,525 1,674,323
JSC sarvices and consulting construction
services
Receivables from teasing activities 364,181 -
Other receivables 11,993 8,257
Vincommerce Affiliate Receivables from general contractor - 113,424
JSC {untit 30 services and consulting construction
Cecember  services
2018) Recelvables from leasing - 6,127
Others Other receivables 58,539 255,867
B,504,953 7,779,773
Less allowance for credit logses (64,426)  (64.455)
Subtotal 8,440,827 7,715,318
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Details of amounts due from and due to related parties as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as below: {continued)

Currency: VND milfion

Ending Beginting
Related parties  Relationship  Transactions balance balance

Short-term loans, advances to and receivables from related parties (continued}

Non-financial assels:

Vingroug JSC Parent Deposits for share transfer 5048142 31,500
company agreement (%)

Sal Dong JBC  Affiliate Deposit for shares transfer 70,258 70,258
agreement

VinlD JSC Affiliate Other advance to suppliers 5,804 -

Vincommerce Affitliate Advance to supplier - 18,199

J8C

Others Affiliate Advance to supplier 7,740 2,149
Subtotal 5,132,944 122,108

13,673,471 7,837,424

(") In which, deposits of VND3,063 billion to Vingroup JSC for acquiring additional shares of
its subsidiaries were secured by entire shares and related rights, benefit of Vingroup JSC in
these companies.

Ending Beginning
Related parties  Relationship  Transactions baiance balance

Long-term deposits to and receivables from related parties

Financial assets:
Vinpeart JSC Affiliate Lending 3,875,005 -
Vinsmart JSC Affiliate Lending 2,206,499 .
Vinfast Affitiate Lending 1,615,812
Produting and
Trading LLC
Vincom Retail Affiliate Receivables from leasing 127,886 120,577
JSC
Vinsmart JSC Affitiate Interest receivables 18,221 -
Vinpear! JSC Affiliate Interest receivables 13,529 -
Others Affiliate Receivables from finance lease 5,934 -
7,862,886 120,577
Less allowance for credit losses - (10,881%)
Subtotal 7,862,886 109,696
Non-financial assets:
Vingroup JSC  Affiliate Deposit for share transfer and 8,439,145 511,418
investment purpose
Subtotal 8,439,145 511,418
16,302,031 621,414
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Details of amounts due from and due to related parties as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as below: {continued)

Currency: YND million

Ending Baginning
Related parties  Relationship Transactions balance balance

Short-term borrowings, deposits from and payables to related parties

Financial liabilities:
Vingroup JSC Parent Management service 487,662 34,734
company payables
Cther trade payables 28,381 247,493
Borrowings - 54,608
interest payables - 186,517
Kindg Heart Fund  Under common Payables for charitable 500,000 100,000
owner purpese
Central Park Affiliate Dividend Payable 154,000 -
LLC Interest payables - 118,758
Borrowings - 520,000
Vincom Retail Affitiate Depcsit interest 10,288 -
JSC payables
VinTech JSC Affiliate Spensor fee payables 8,878 -
Grand Prix LLC  Affiliate Borrowings - 808,000
interest payables - 24 633
Vincommerce Affiliate Payables for purchased 5,562
JSC goods
Others Other payables 122,889 120,840
Subtotal 1,312,108 2,189,233
Non-financial liabilities:
Vincom Retail Affiliate Deposit for Business 191,884 163,000
J5C Co-operation Contract
Payables for goods 13,242 -
purchased
Vinschooi LLC  Affiliate Advances for 34,725 -
construction activities
Vinpearl JSC Affiliate Deposit for Business - 634,962
Co-operation Contract
Vincommetce Affiliate Advance for - 93,109
JsC construction
Vincom Retail Affiliate Advance for - 48,921
JEC construction
Kind Heart Under common  Advance for - 14,392
Fund owner construction
Vingroup JSC  Parent Advance for . 41,268
comparny construction
Subtotal 439,961 995,652
1,552,069 3,184,885
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {(continued)

Details of amounts due from and due to related parties as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 are as below: (continued)

Currency: YND million

Ending Beginning
Reiafed paties Relationship Transactions balance balance
l.ong-term deferred revenue and payables to related parties
Financial liabilities:
Xavinco JSC Affiliate Botrowings 347,938 626,851
interest payable 151,473 106,198
Xalivico LLC Affiliate Borrowings 399,717 241,809
Interest payable 67,341 34,728
Vinfast LLC Affiliate Borrowings - 3,180,327
Interest payable - 168,571
Vinpear] JSC Affiliate Borrowings - 1,712,203
interest payable - 103,154
Central Park L1.C Affiliate Borrowings - 611,676
Interest payable - 4,495
Cam Ranh LLC Affitiate Interest payable - €98
Subtotal 966,469 5,771,809
Non-financial liabilities:
Vincom Retail JSC  Affiliate Deferred revenue - 257,809
Subtotal - 257,809
866,469 7,029,818
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Amounts due to and due from related parties as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 were as follows: (continued)

Details of short-term lending as at 31 December 2019

Amount  Interest rate
Related parfies  Relationship VND million % per annum  Maturity date  Collateral

Central Park LLC Affiliate 655,000 8% December (i)
2020

655,000

{i} This lending is secured by shares of an affiliate held by this borrower.
Detalls of long-term lending as at 31 December 2019:

Amount  Interest rate
Related parties  Relationship VND miflion % per annum  Maturity date  Collateral

Vinpeart JSC Affiliate 3,875,005 9% February (i)
2021
Vinsmart JSC Affiliate 2,208,499 9% February (i)
2021
Vinfast Affiliate 1,615,812 9% February (i)
Producing and : 2021
Trading LLC
7,862,800

{) The lending is secured by shares of a listed company within the Group held by this
borrower and shares of this borrower held by shareholders.

(i} The lending is secured by entire buildings and structures, machinery and equipment of
this borrower.

(i) The lending is secured by capital contribution of Vingroup JSC In this borrower.

The balance of lending to related parties as at 31 December 2018 is nil.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Details of iong-term bosrowings as at 31 December 2019:

Amount
Related parties  Relationship VND milfion
Xavinco JSC Affiliate 347,938
Xalivico LLC Affiliate 388,717
747,655

interest rate
% per annum

9%

9%

Maturity date
July 2021

July 2021

() These loans are secured by shares of the Company in @ subsidiary.

Detaits of short-term borrowings as at 31 December 2018:

Amount

Related parties  Relationship VND million

Grand Prix LLC  Affiliate 808,000

Central Park LLG Affiliate 520,000

Vingroup JSC  Parent 54,606
company

1,382,606

Interest rate
% per annum
9%

9%

9%

Details of long-term borrowings as at 31 December 2018

Amount
Related parties  Relationship VND million
Vinfast LLC Affitiate 3,160,327
Vinpear! JSC Affiliate 1,712,203
Xavinco JSC Affiliate 626,851
Central Park Affiliate 611,676
LLC
Xalivico LLC Affiliate 241,908
6,352,966

interest rate
% per annum

9%
%
9%

S%

9%

Maturity date

September
2019

From January
2018 1o
September
2019

December
2018

Maturfty dale
February 2020
February 2020
February 2020

From January
2020 ta
February 2020

February 2020

Coflateral
(i)
(i}

Collateral

None

(it)

(i)

Collateral
{1
(i}
(H)
(i)

(i}

(i) These loans are secured by listed and non-listed shares of some companies within the

Group.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

34,

35.

36.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Other related party transactions

Remuneration to members of management and Board of Directors:

201¢% 2018

VND million VND miflion

Salaries and bonus 62,792 23,797
TOTAL. 62,792 23,797

CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS

During the year 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to VND700.7 billion (2018: to VND460 billion). These borrowing costs are mainly
related to specific borrowings taken to finance the construction of Vinhomes Central Park,
Vinhomes Ocean Park, Vinhomes Smart City and Vinhomes Metropolis Projects. The
capitalised borrowing costs are determined by applying a capitaiisation rate from 8.12% per
annum to 10.4% per annum (2018: from 7.00% per annum to 10.03% per annum,.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except for the events after the consclidated financial statement date as presented in cther
notes of the consolidgated financial staterments, the Company and its subsidiaries also have
the following events after the consolidated balance sheet date:

On 10 March 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the acquisition of 7,000,000
shares, equivalent to 100% equity interest in a company from Vingroup JSC, a counterparty
and an affiliate for a total consideration of VND70 billion. Accordingly, this company became
a subsidiary of the Company and its subsidiaries. On 16 March 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries completed the additional capital contribution to this subsidiary amounting to
VND5,930 billion. Other information about this transaction is not available as initial accounting
for this transaction is incomplete at the time the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue.

In February 2020, the Prime Minister of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam officially announced
an epidemic of acute respiratory infections caused by Coronavirus Pandemic (“Covid-19
Pandemic”). The Company and its subsidiaries have proposed several general solutions o
cut costs and recrganise business operations during the Covid-1¢ Pandemic.

On 4 Aprit 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the establishment of a
subsidiary from a demerger transaction. After completion of the demerger, the equity interest
of the Company and its subsidiaries in the demerged entity did not change. On 13 May 2020,
the new company is announced to be in the process of completing dissolution procedures,

in May 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries acquired 99% equity interest in a real estate
company from counterparties for a total consideration of VND4,554 billion. Accordingly, this
company became a subsidiary of the Company and its subsidiaries. Other information about
this transaction is not avaiiable as initial accounting for this transaction is incomplete at the
time the consolidated financia! statements are authorised for issuance.
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Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2019 and for the year then ended

36.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

On 15 May 2020, the Company completed the establishment of a subsidiary with capital
contribution of VND1,032 billion, equivalent to 98.06% equity interest in this subsidiary.

In May and June 2020, Green City JSC, a subsidiary of the Company issued secured honds
at par value of VND2,000 billion with terms ranging from 24 to 36 menths, which bear interests
at rate of 9.5% per annum from the issuance date to 31 December 2020, and at the rate of
2.3% per annum plus 12-month intérest paid-in-arrear VND saving rate for individuais for the
following periods.

On 30 May 2020, the Company issued secured bonds at par value of VND2,997 billion with
terms ranging from 18 to 36 months, which bear interests at rate from 8% to 10% for the first
year, and at the rate of 3.25% per annum plus 12-month interest paid-in-arrear VND saving
rate for the following periods.

There is no other matter or circumstance that has arisen since the consolidated balance sheet
date that requires adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. :
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